
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

January 23-24, 2025 
 

Montana School Boards Association 
863 Great Northern Blvd 

Helena, MT 
   

 
  



AGENDA 
 

  



Board of Public Education January 23-24, 2025  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
January 23-24, 2025 

Montana School Boards Association 
863 Great Northern Blvd 

Helena, MT 
 

 
Thursday, January 23, 2025 
8:30 AM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

    
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time will be provided for public comment on items not listed on the agenda. This meeting is open to the public both in 
person and electronically. For those wishing to give virtual public comment, please contact bpe@mt.gov to request the Zoom 
link for the meeting. Members of the public who have joined virtually on Zoom may “raise their hand” at the appropriate time 
to participate after being recognized by the Board Chair. Members of the public who wish to share written public comment 
with the Board members must submit written public comment to the Executive Director at bpe@mt.gov no later than two 
(2) business days before the start of the meeting. Any written public comment received after this deadline will be shared 
with the Board members after the meeting. All written public comment will be included as part of the official public record. 
 
Action may be taken on any item listed on the Board agenda. Per §2-3-103, MCA, the Board encourages public comment on 
any item prior to Board final action. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – page #9 

(Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda upon request) 
 

A. November 20-22, 2024 and December 11, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
B. Financials 

    
ADOPT AGENDA 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 1) 
 

Item 1   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR – 5 Minutes, page #27 
   McCall Flynn 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 2-6) 
    

Item 2   CHAIRPERSON REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #28 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 

• Welcome New Board Member 
   
Item 3   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #29 
   McCall Flynn 
 
Item 4   STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – 1 Hour, page #30 
   State Superintendent Susie Hedalen 

• Transportation Report 

mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:bpe@mt.gov


Board of Public Education January 23-24, 2025  Page 2 
 

• Assessment Update 
• Federal Report 
• Accreditation Report 
• Content Standards Revision Update 

 
Item 5   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #42 
   Dylan Klapmeier 
 
Item 6  COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #43 
   Dr. Angela McLean 
    

 CHARTER COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman (Items 7-8) 
 
Item 7 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE SCHOOL COMMISSION – 15 Minutes, page #44 
 Trish Schreiber 
 
Item 8 WORK SESSION ON THE APPROVAL AND DENIAL OF PUBLIC CHARTER 

SCHOOLS – 1.5 Hours, page #45 
 Jane Hamman  
 
*******************************************************LUNCH BREAK******************************************************* 

**Lunch will be provided for Board members** 
 
*************************************************RECONVENE AT 1:00 PM************************************************* 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman (Items 9-13) 
 
Item 9 INFORMATION ON PRAXIS REGENERATED TEST REVIEW AND QUALIFYING 

SCORES FOR SOCIAL STUDIES, INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGY, AND FAMILY AND 
CONSUMER SCIENCE – 15 Minutes, page #47 

 Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 10 INFORMATION ON ANNUAL EDUCATOR LICENSURE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page 

#52 
   Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 11 INFORMATION ON MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY SPECIAL EDUCATION 

CERTIFICATION PROGRAM – 15 Minutes, page #73 
   Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 12 PRESENTATION ON ABCTE INTERIM REPORT FOR ALTERNATIVE 

CREDENTIALING – 30 Minutes, page #77 
   Isabell Welch, ABCTE and Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 13 INFORMATION ON THE QUALITY EDUCATOR LOAN ASSISTANCE PROGRAM – 15 

Minutes, page #81 
 Dr. Julie Murgel 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 14-15) 
 
Item 14 ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION PERTAINING TO THE ADOPTION, 

AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF ARM, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS 
CONTENT STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE 
SECRETARY OF STATE’S OFFICE FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER – 5 Minutes, page #84 

   Madalyn Quinlan 
 



Board of Public Education January 23-24, 2025  Page 3 
 

Item 15 ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION PERTAINING TO THE ADOPTION AND 
REPEAL OF ARM, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 54, WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT 
STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE SECRETARY 
OF STATE’S OFFICE FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE 
REGISTER – 5 Minutes, page #88 

   Madalyn Quinlan 
 
************************************************TIME CERTAIN AT 2:45 PM************************************************ 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman (Item 16) 
 
Item 16 ACTION ON CONTESTED CASE HEARING BPE CASE #2024-10, MAHERAS – 1 

Hour, page #94  
   Aislinn Brown 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 17) 
 
Item 17   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #95 
   Gavin Mow 
 

 MSDB LIAISON – Lisa Schmidt (Item 18) 
 
Item 18   MSDB REPORT – 30 Minutes, page #96 
   Paul Furthmyre 
 
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Personnel Action 
• Out of State Travel Requests 
• 2nd Reading MSDB Policies 

 
*****************************************************CLOSED SESSION***************************************************** 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 19) 
 
Item 19   MSDB SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION – 30 Minutes, page #194 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
*******************************************************OPEN SESSION******************************************************* 
 
RECESS 
 
Friday, January 24, 2025 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 20-22) 

 
Item 20 ACTION ON MSDB SUPERINTENDENT 2024-2025 CONTRACT – 15 Minutes, page 

#196 
 Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
Item 21 ACTION ON TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING GRANTS – 15 Minutes, page #197 



Board of Public Education January 23-24, 2025  Page 4 
 

   Krystal Smith 
    
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Qualify Applications 
• Annual Reports 

 
Item 22 ACTION ON ADVANCED OPPORTUNITY GRANTS – 15 Minutes, page #204 
   Krystal Smith 
 
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Qualify Applications 
• Annual Reports 

 
 MACIE LIAISON – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 23-24) 

  
Item 23 MACIE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #213 
 Jordann Lankford Forster 
 
Item 24   INFORMATION ON GOVERNOR’S BUDGET REQUEST – 15 Minutes, page #217 
   April Grady 
 

 CHARTER COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman (Item 25) 
 
Item 25 ACTION ON THE RESOLUTIONS TO APPROVE AND DENY PUBLIC CHARTER 

SCHOOLS – 1 Hour, page #219 
 Jane Hamman 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 26) 
 
Item 26  RECOGNITION OF EXITING BOARD MEMBER – 15 Minutes, page #220 
  Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – March 11-12, 2025 – East Helena, MT  
MACIE Update 
Action on MSDB School Calendar 
Action on Early Literacy Screening Tools (Odd Years) 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 
Annual School Food Services Report 
Review Draft CAEP MOU 
Content Standards Revision Update 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time will be provided for public comment on items not listed on the agenda. This meeting is open to the public both in 
person and electronically. For those wishing to give virtual public comment, please contact bpe@mt.gov to request the Zoom 
link for the meeting. Members of the public who have joined virtually on Zoom may “raise their hand” at the appropriate time 
to participate after being recognized by the Board Chair. Members of the public who wish to share written public comment 
with the Board members must submit written public comment to the Executive Director at bpe@mt.gov no later than two 
(2) business days before the start of the meeting. Any written public comment received after this deadline will be shared 
with the Board members after the meeting. All written public comment will be included as part of the official public record. 
 
ADJOURN 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 

mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:bpe@mt.gov


Board of Public Education January 23-24, 2025  Page 5 
 

Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 
200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 406-444-0302. 
 
 

 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION TOURS 
 
11:30AM   PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL CLASSROOM OBSERVATION 
   Mount Ascension Learning Academy 

  Exploration Works, 995 Carousel Way, Helena, MT  
 
12:15PM   PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL ROUNDTABLE LUNCH 
   Central Elementary School, 402 North Warren, Helena, MT 
 
1:15PM   PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL CLASSROOM OBSERVATION 
   Montessori Charter School 
   Central Elementary School, 402 North Warren, Helena, MT 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
  



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda if 
requested 

 
 

A. November 20-22, 2024 and 
December 11, 2024 Meeting 
Minutes 

B. Financials 
 

  



CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

  



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
November 20-22, 2024 

Willson School, Boardroom 
404 W Main Street 

Bozeman, MT 
 

 
Wednesday, November 20, 2024 
2:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 0:00:01 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 2:04 PM.  The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance and Ms. 
Kris Stockton took Roll Call.  The Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests. 
 
Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Ms. Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger; Ms. Renee Rasmussen; 
Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Jane Hamman; Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Mr. Gavin Mow, Student Representative.  Ex Officio 
members: Dr. Angela McLean, Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education (OCHE); State Superintendent 
Elsie Arntzen, Office of Public Instruction (OPI). Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, 
Administrative Specialist; Ms. Julie Balsam, Accounting Technician. Guests: Superintendent Casey Bertram, 
Bozeman Public Schools (BPS); Deputy Superintendent Mike VanVuren, BPS; Superintendent Paul Furthmyre, 
Montana School for the Deaf and Blind (MSDB); Ms. Calli Rusche Nicholson, Vice Chair, Montana Advisory 
Council on Indian Education (MACIE); Mr. Gary Lusin, Bozeman School Board Trustee; Dr. Doug Ruhman, Salish 
Kootenai College (SKC); Ms. Kim Popham, Montana Federation of Public Employees (MFPE); Ms. Cedar Rose, 
OPI; Ms. Crystal Andrews, OPI; Ms. Marie Judisch, OPI; Ms. April Grady, OPI; Ms. Carrie Kouba, OPI; Ms. 
Christy Mock-Stutz, OPI; Dr. Julie Murgel, OPI.  
    
PUBLIC COMMENT – 00:02:02 
Ms. Kim Popham thanked Chair Tharp’s recognition of the teachers who received the Presidential Award for 
Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA – 00:03:04 
 

Board member Slinger moved to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Board member Quinlan. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

    
ADOPT AGENDA – 00:03:35 
 

Board member Quinlan moved to adopt the Agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by 
Board member Schmidt. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 1-4) 

    
Item 1   CHAIRPERSON REPORT – 00:03:59 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 
Chair Tim Tharp introduced Superintendent Bertram who welcomed the Board to Bozeman and reviewed facts 
and information about BPS.  Chair Tharp reviewed the meeting between the Board and the Council of Deans of 
Education and the two positions that will be open on the Board and discussions he has had with potential 
applicants. Chair Tharp then discussed meetings and events he has attended on behalf of the Board since the 
September Board meeting and congratulated Vice Chair Hedalen on her victory as the State Superintendent 
Elect. 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 2 
 

 
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT – 00:17:38 
   McCall Flynn 
Ms. McCall Flynn thanked Superintendent Bertram for hosting the Board, reviewed the discussion with the 
Council of Deans of Education, then asked Board member Quinlan to review a meeting she attended in Bozeman 
to discuss the systems of education in Montana.  Ms. Flynn reviewed work of the Board staff since the September 
meeting as well as her attendance at all the regional Montana Association of School Superintendents meetings.  
Ms. Flynn discussed the Education Interim Committee and Education Interim Budget Committee meetings held in 
September and agency legislation they will be carrying related to the Board.  Ms. Flynn briefly discussed items on 
the agenda and reviewed visits completed to several Public Charter Schools.  
 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – 00:30:16 
   State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen 
Superintendent Elsie Arntzen reviewed upcoming education related legislation, announced the 2024 Montana 
Teacher of the Year, Ms. Dawn Sievers, and updated the Board on the progress of closing the ESSER funds, 
then turned the report over to OPI staff for updates. 
 
Assessment Update:  Ms. Cedar Rose updated the Board on the most recent MAST testlet administered in math, 
and feedback OPI received from teachers about the MAST Assessment. Ms. Rose answered Board members’ 
questions. 
 
Federal Update: Ms. Carrie Kouba discussed the Attendance Research Project and Teacher Mentorship Project 
at the OPI then answered Board members’ questions. 
 
Accreditation Report:  Ms. Crystal Andrews updated the Board with information related to Accreditation since the 
September Board meeting and answered Board members’ questions. 
 
Content Standards Revision Update:  Ms. Marie Judisch presented an update of the Content Standards Revisions 
and provided a status of where each content standard is in the revisions process. 
 
Annual Data Collection:  Ms. Anna Hoerner reviewed the most recent information related to the Annual Data 
Collection for 2024.   
 
Data Modernization Update:  Ms. Anna Hoerner reviewed progress of the Data Modernization Project at the OPI 
and answered Board members’ questions.  
 
Item 4 COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION REPORT – 01:28:16 
   Dr. Angela McLean 
Dr. Angela McLean congratulated Vice Chair Hedalen on her new role as State Superintendent Elect and thanked 
the Board, Ms. Flynn, and the Board Accreditation Committee, for the proposed resolution to consider the addition 
of a 3rd year of Math to the graduation requirements. Dr. McLean noted that the Free Application for Federal 
Student Aid will open in December, reviewed topics discussed at the most recent meeting of the American Indian 
Minority Achievement Advisory Council, and reviewed work the Commissioner’s Office is doing for the upcoming 
Legislative Session.    
    

 MSDB LIAISON – Lisa Schmidt (Item 5) 
 
Item 5   MSDB REPORT – 01:34:14 
   Paul Furthmyre 
Board member Schmidt reviewed the October Special Board meeting pertaining to an MSDB request, then turned 
the item over to Superintendent Furthmyre for his report.  Superintendent Furthmyre reviewed the action items 
listed on the agenda and requested Board approval.  Superintendent Furthmyre noted the correct date on the 
National Student Life travel request is July 6-11, 2025. 
 

Board member Schmidt moved to approve the MSDB Personnel Action Items as listed in 
the agenda packet.  Motion seconded by Board member Rasmussen. 

   
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 3 
 

Board member Schmidt moved to approve the MSDB Out of State Travel Requests as 
listed in the agenda packet with the correct date of July 6-11, 2025 and dollar amount of 
$9,420 for the National Student Life Conference.  Motion seconded by Board member 
Rasmussen. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Board member Schmidt moved to approve the Final Reading of MSDB Policies as listed in 
the agenda packet.  Motion seconded by Board member Hamman. 
 
Board member Quinlan congratulated Superintendent Furthmyre for completion of the 
policy review and asked if the updated policies affected MSDB’s accreditation status with 
Cognia.  Superintendent Furthmyre responded it will take care of the concerns Cognia had 
with policy management. 
 

  No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Superintendent Paul Furthmyre continued his report with a review of a recent Goal Ball competition, the 
completion of the feasibility study for the HVAC system, legislation for the upcoming session, and his continued 
work to develop a teacher preparation program in Montana for interpreters.  Vice Chair Hedalen commented on 
the important work that interpreters do, the challenging education it takes to become an interpreter, and her 
appreciation for the work Superintendent Furthmyre has done on this project.  Superintendent Furthmyre 
answered Board members’ questions.   
 

 MACIE LIAISON – Susie Hedalen (Item 6) 
  
Item 6 MACIE REPORT – 02:08:31 
 Calli Rusche Nicholson 
Vice Chair Susie Hedalen reviewed each of the MACIE nominations and requested the Board act on the 
nominations. 
 

Vice Chair Hedalen moved to approve the nominations to MACIE for the School 
Administrators of Montana and the Montana School Boards Association.  Motion 
seconded by Board member Slinger. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Calli Nicholson, Vice Chair for MACIE gave a brief presentation with an announcement of staff changes on 
the Council, and noted the next meeting scheduled for January 8, 2025. 
 
Ms. Flynn reviewed the schedule for the Board meeting Thursday beginning with tours in the morning and the 
meeting in the afternoon. 
 
The Board recessed for the day at 4:20 PM. 
 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 
1:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 00:00:55 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM.  The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance and Ms. 
Kris Stockton took Roll Call.  The Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests. 
 
Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Ms. Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger; Ms. Renee Rasmussen; 
Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Jane Hamman; Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Mr. Gavin Mow, Student Representative.  Ex Officio 
members: Mr. Dylan Klapmeier, Governor’s Office. Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, 
Administrative Specialist; Ms. Julie Balsam, Accounting Technician; Ms. Jenny Murnane Butcher, Program 
Officer. Guests: Dr. Craig Buscher, Attain Education Consulting; Ms. Genevieve Thomas, Director of Professional 
Learning, School Services of Montana; Dr. Danielle “Nell” Thompson, The Transformative Reading Teacher 
Group; Ms. Katie Madsen, OPI; Ms. Trish Schreiber, Chair, Community Choice Schools Commission; Ms. Christy 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 4 
 

Mock-Stutz, OPI; Ms. Marie Judisch, OPI; Ms. April Grady, OPI; Mr. Rick Wootton, Attorney, OPI; Mr. Brenton 
Craggs, Attorney, OPI; Ms. Aislinn Brown, Board Legal Counsel; Ms. Kristi Steinberg; University of Montana 
(UM); Dr. Julie Murgel, OPI; Ms. Kim Popham, MFPE; Superintendent Bertram, BPS; Deputy Superintendent 
Mike VanVuren, BPS.  
 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Ron Slinger (Item 7) 
 

Item 7 ACTION AND PANEL PRESENTATION ON THE APPLICATION AND CRITERIA FOR 
THE LIST OF APPROVED EARLY LITERACY SCREENING TOOLS – 00:04:39 

 McCall Flynn; Craig Buscher, EdD, Attain Education Consulting; Genevieve 
Thomas, Director of Professional Learning, School Services of Montana; Danielle 
‘Nell’ Thompson, Ph.D. CCC-SLP, The Transformative Reading Teacher Group; Ms. 
Genevieve Thomas 

Panel members introduced themselves to the Board and Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed the panel format. Board 
member Slinger asked questions of the panelists regarding the process used to select the screening tools for the 
List of Approved Early Literacy Screening Tools. 
 

Board member Slinger moved to approve the list of applications and criteria for the list of 
early literacy screening tools.  Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 8-9) 
 
Item 8   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT – 00:39:28 
   Gavin Mow 
Mr. Gavin Mow reviewed the Montana Association of Student Councils Annual Conference and discussed a 
resolution students passed to encourage schools to ban cell phone use in class.  Mr. Mow discussed his 
participation in the new Student Advisory Council to the National Association of State Boards of Education, then 
reviewed the student survey he has worked on over the past year.  The survey will be conducted and completed 
prior to the Christmas break and results will be shared with the Board upon completion.  Mr. Mow answered 
Board members’ questions. 
 
Item 9   ANNUAL HISET REPORT – 00:52:49 
 Katie Madsen 
Ms. Katie Madsen highlighted items in the Annual HiSET Report which included the transition to a new vendor, 
bringing the GED test back as a testing option, HiSET passing rate of 80%, and alternative pathways for non-
traditional learners.  Ms. Madsen answered Board members’ questions.  
 

 CHARTER COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman (Items 10-14) 
 
Item 10 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE SCHOOL COMMISSION – 01:13:56 
 Trish Schreiber 
Ms. Trish Schreiber updated the Board on work the Commission has completed since her report at the September 
2024 Board meeting and noted that September marked the one-year anniversary of the Commission.  Ms. 
Schreiber noted that the Commission is near the end of Phase III of the seven phases mapped out and 
announced the receipt of a $300,000 grant for one year. The Commission will use the grant to implement the law 
and hire a staff person.  Ms. Schreiber discussed next steps for the Commission and answered Board members’ 
questions. 
 
Item 11 INFORMATION AND REVIEW OF PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 2024-25 FALL DATA 

REPORTING – 01:21:36 
   Christy Mock-Stutz 
Ms. Christy Mock-Stutz reviewed the enrollment counts from the 2024 Fall Data Report specific to the Public 
Charter Schools. Ms. Mock-Stutz reviewed numbers, the categories of data collected, and answered Board 
members’ questions. Mr. Paul Taylor provided clarification on the numbers reported and how the calculations for 
Average Number Belonging are calculated. 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 5 
 

Item 12 UPDATE ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATIONS AND SPECIAL MEETING 
– 01:39:19 

 Jane Hamman 
Board member Jane Hamman discussed the eleven applications for new Public Charter Schools and the Special 
Board meeting that will be held December 11, 2024, when the interviews will be conducted. 
 
Item 13 REVIEW OF PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION AND CRITERIA – 01:41:19 
   McCall Flynn 
Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed the Application and Criteria for Public Charter Schools and discussed the review and 
evaluation process for the new applications ahead of the December 11, 2024, Special Board Meeting.  Ms. Flynn 
reviewed the work that Ms. Jenny Murnane Butcher has done for the Public Charter School Program, particularly 
related to the reporting requirements for current schools and the Performance Framework schools have 
completed. Ms. Murnane Butcher added comments on other work she has completed related to the Public 
Charter School Program.   
 
Item 14 INFORMATION ON UPDATED PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE 

FRAMEWORK – 01:54:24 
 McCall Flynn 

Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed changes made to the Performance Framework to align with OPI updates to the 
Accreditation process and how the Framework was developed with input from schools and school officials. 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Susie Hedalen (Items 15-19) 
 

Item 15 INFORMATION ON THE ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT 
PROVIDERS LIST – 02:14:30 

 Marie Judisch 
Ms. Marie Judisch presented the Annual Professional Development Unit Providers List and answered Board 
members’ questions. 
 
Item 16 ACTION ON SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION ON EDUCATOR 

LICENSURE ANNUAL AND FILING FEE AMOUNTS – 02:31:08 
 April Grady 
Ms. April Grady reviewed the Superintendent’s recommendation for the Educator Licensure Annual and Filing 
Fees and explained that a balance remains in the account and that a decreased price has been negotiated for the 
licensing system.  This has allowed the Superintendent to recommend removal of the $25 technology fee and to 
leave licensure fees the same. Ms. Grady answered Board members’ questions. 
 

Board member Quinlan moved to remove the twenty-five dollar technology fee on the 
educator licensure annual and filing fee amounts for 2025.  Motion seconded by Board 
member Schmidt. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 17   NOTICE OF THE SURRENDER OF BPE CASE #2024-11 – 02:37:57 
   Rick Wootton 
Mr. Rick Wootton presented the voluntary surrender of an educator license to the Board. 
 
Item 18 ACTION ON INITIAL REVIEW OF BPE CASE #2024-09, EVANS – 02:39:17 
   Rick Wootton 
Mr. Rick Wootton reviewed a request from a school district that requested the Board issue a letter of reprimand to 
an educator.   
 

Board member Quinlan moved to approve moving BPE Case 2024-09 Evans, to a 
contested case hearing at the January 2025 meeting.  Motion seconded by Board member 
Slinger. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 19 ACTION ON INITIAL REVIEW OF BPE CASE #2024-10, MAHERAS – 02:42:42 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 6 
 

   Brenton Craggs 
Ms. Aislinn Brown noted that Mr. Maheras will not attend the meeting today and that he requests a contested 
case hearing.  Mr. Brenton Craggs reviewed BPE Case #2024-10 and stated the reasons for the Superintendent’s 
request the Board issue a letter of reprimand to the educator.   
 

Board member Quinlan moved to approve moving BPE Case #2024-10 Maheras, to a 
contested case hearing at the January 2025 Board meeting.  Motion seconded by Board 
member Hamman. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Meeting recessed for the day at 4:06 PM. 
 
Friday, November 22, 2024 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 00:00:54 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM.  The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance and Ms. 
Kris Stockton took Roll Call.  The Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests. 
 
Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Ms. Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger; Ms. Renee Rasmussen; 
Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Jane Hamman; Ms. Lisa Schmidt.  Ex Officio members: Dr. Angela McLean, OCHE. 
Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, Administrative Specialist; Ms. Julie Balsam, 
Accounting Technician. Guests: Ms. Crystal Andrews, OPI; Dr. Julie Murgel, OPI; Ms. Ellery Bresler, OPI; Ms. 
Michelle Price, OPI; Ms. Marie Judisch; OPI; Dr. Robin Clausen, OPI; Dr. Erica Allen, UM; Dr. John Matt, UM; Dr. 
Bill McCaw, UM; Dr. Liqin Tang, UM; Dr. Dan Lee, UM; Ms. Kristi Steinberg, UM; Dr. Doug Ruhman, SKC; Ms. 
Kim Popham, MFPE; Ms. Christy Mock-Stutz, OPI; Dr. Julie Murgel, OPI; Deputy Superintendent Mike VanVuren, 
BPS.  
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE (cont.) – Susie Hedalen (Items 20-22) 
 
Item 20 ACTION ON THE SITE VISIT AND STATE EXIT REPORT OF SALISH KOOTENAI 

COLLEGE EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDER IN THE DIVISION OF 
EDUCATION – 00:04:09 

 Crystal Andrews  
Ms. Crystal Andrews presented the Site Visit and State Exit Report for SKC which was an information item at the 
September Board Meeting.  Ms. Andrews gave a high level overview of the report before Dr. Doug Ruhman made 
remarks regarding the accreditation process and answered Board members’ questions. 
 

Vice Chair Hedalen moved to approve the State Exit Report and Regular Accreditation 
Status of Salish Kootenai College Educator Preparation Provider in the Division of 
Education.  Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 
 
Chair Tharp commended Dr. Ruhman on the success of the program. 
 
No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 21 FOLLOW UP REPORT ON PRAXIS TEST SCORES IN HARD-TO-FILL 

ENDORSEMENT AREAS – 00:16:01 
 Crystal Andrews 
Ms. Crystal Andrews presented a follow up report requested by the Board at the September Board meeting which 
provided additional information about the Praxis test scores in hard to fill endorsement areas.  Ms. Andrews 
reported lower numbers of test takers and lower test scores, a trend that has been seen nationwide, and that the 
Elementary Education Praxis test used in Montana differs from the test used in most states.  This finding was 
brought to the attention of the Praxis Working Group and Ms. Kristi Steinberg has presented the information to the 
Council of Deans for consideration to move to the more commonly used test.  Ms. Andrews answered Board 
members’ questions. 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 7 
 

Item 22 ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDER REPORT – 
00:30:29 

 Crystal Andrews and Michelle Price 
Ms. Michelle Price highlighted pieces of the Annual Educator Preparation Provider Report which included the 
Accreditation Review Schedule, Accreditation Areas, and Praxis scores.  Board members asked questions of OPI 
staff regarding the report. 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 23-27) 
 
Item 23 ACTION ON VARIANCE TO STANDARDS – 00:46:51 
 Ellery Bresler and Crystal Andrews 
Ms. Ellery Bresler reviewed the process used by the Variances to Standards Board to review the applications and 
stated that all the applications were approved and recommended to the Superintendent for approval.  Ms. Bresler 
reviewed the eleven initial applications and requested Board approval. 
    

Board member Quinlan moved to approve the Superintendent’s recommendations on the 
initial applications for variances to standards.  Motion seconded by Board member 
Slinger. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Ms. Bresler reviewed the five renewal applications and requested Board approval. 
 
Board member Quinlan moved to approve the Superintendent’s recommendation on the 
renewal applications for variances to standards.  Motion seconded by Board member 
Hamman. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 24 ACTION ON CORRECTIVE PLANS FOR DEFICIENT AND ADVICE STATUS 

ACCREDITATED SCHOOLS – 01:12:09 
 Crystal Andrews 
Ms. Crystal Andrews reviewed the 2023-2024 Corrective Plans to the Annual Accreditation Report as required by 
the Accreditation Standards and answered Board members’ questions. 
 

 Board member Quinlan moved to approve the corrective plans for the 2023-2024 Montana 
Annual Accreditation Report.  Motion seconded by Board member Rasmussen. 

 
 No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 25 ACTION ON RESOLUTION TO ENCOURAGE A 3RD YEAR OF MATHEMATICS AND 

SUPPORT FOR MATHEMATICS ATTAINMENT AND PROFICIENCY – 01:31:50 
 McCall Flynn 
Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed the conversations held at previous Board meetings regarding a request from the 
Commissioner’s Office for the Board to consider the addition of a third year of mathematics to the graduation 
requirements and discussed the proposed resolution for the Board to support the request. Chair Tharp noted that 
many districts already require a third year of mathematics for graduation and discussed the process to revise the 
Accreditation Standards.  The Chair noted that for some small schools the addition of a third year may create 
barriers to graduation for their students. Chair Tharp stated that the Board of Regents has adopted a resolution 
for a third year of mathematics requirement, and he will present a resolution at the Board of Education meeting for 
approval.  Dr. Angela McLean thanked the Board for their work surrounding this topic, as well as OPI and the 
Governor’s Office, and Chair Tharp thanked Ms. Flynn for drafting the resolution. Dr. Julie Murgel noted the OPI 
has formed a Task Force to review this topic and stands ready to partner with and support math proficiency. 
Board member Rasmussen stated her appreciation for taking time to make the change for small schools who may 
struggle to make this happen. 
 

 Board member Quinlan moved to approve the resolution to encourage a 3rd year of 
mathematics and support for mathematics attainment and proficiency.  Motion seconded 
by Board member Schmidt. 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 8 
 

  
 No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.      
 

Item 26 INFORMATION ON UPATED ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT TO ARM TITLE 10, 
CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS – 01:44:59 

   Marie Judisch 
Ms. Marie Judisch reviewed the Economic Impact Statement related to the proposed revisions to the Mathematics 
Content Standards and noted that OPI sought additional feedback from schools. Ms. Judisch answered Board 
members’ questions regarding the statement, and Ms. Flynn reviewed the accreditation statute that requires the 
Board present the statement to the Education Interim Budget Committee. 
 
Item 27 ACTION ON AND RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED ON REVISIONS 

TO ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS – 
02:06:54 

   Madalyn Quinlan 
Ms. McCall Flynn noted that no public comments were received, and the Board will take action to approve the 
proposed revisions at the January 2025 Board meeting.  
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 28) 
 
Item 28 INFORMATION ON FOUR DAY SCHOOL WEEK RESEARCH REPORT – 02:07:45 
 Dr. Erica Allen, University of Montana; Dr. John Matt, University of Montana; Dr. 

Bill McCaw, University of Montana; Dr. Liqin Tang, University of Montana; Dr. 
Robin Clausen, OPI 

Dr. Erica Allen introduced herself and the panel members to the Board before the group presented the final Four 
Day School Week Research Report.  Dr. Robin Clausen conducted a question and answer discussion with the 
panel members about their research and panelists answered Board members' questions.  Chair Tharp thanked 
the panel members for their hard work, as well as Dr. Clausen and Dr. Murgel at the OPI. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – January 16-17, 2025 – Helena, MT 
Exiting Board Member – Last Meeting and Recognition 
MACIE Update 
Review individual Community Choice Schools’ Annual Reports 
ABCTe Interim Report 
Action on Authorizing Public Charter Schools 
Transportation Report 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 
Teacher Licensure Report 
Qualify Transformational Learning & Advanced Opportunity Grant Applications 
Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report 
Content Standards Revision Update 
Action on MSDB Superintendent Contract Extension 
MSDB Superintendent Performance Evaluation & Contract Extension Discussion 
 
Dr. Tharp presented outgoing Board member, Vice Chair Hedalen with a gift from the Board, thanked her for her 
work in public education, and wished her well in her new role as State Superintendent of Public Instruction.  Vice 
Chair Hedalen thanked the Board for their work and for the opportunity to work with each member.  Board 
member Rassmussen echoed the Chair’s remarks, and Dr. McLean extended congratulations on behalf of OCHE 
and thanked Vice Chair Hedalen for her leadership. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 
 
ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 11:55PM. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 



 

Board of Public Education November 20-22, 2024  Page 9 
 

The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 
200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 406-444-0302. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


Board of Public Education December 11, 2024  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
December 11, 2024 

Zoom 
 
Wednesday, December 11, 2024 
8:15 AM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 8:15 AM.  The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance and Ms. 
Stockton took Roll Call.  The Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests. 
 
Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Ms. Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger; Ms. Renee Rasmussen; 
Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Jane Hamman; Ms. Lisa Schmidt.  Ex Officio members: Dr. Angela McLean, Office of 
the Commissioner of Higher Education (OCHE). Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, 
Administrative Specialist; Ms. Jenny Murnane Butcher, Program Officer. Guests: Superintendent Judy Jonart, 
Butte Public Schools (BPS); Ms. Melissa Johnson, BPS; Mr. Ron Ricketts, BPS; Mr. Keith Miller, BPS; Ms. 
Suzanne Evans, BPS; Superintendent Tobin Novasio, Hardin Public Schools (HPS); Ms. Jodeen Marston, HPS 
School Board Chair; Principal Taylor Sidwell, HPS; Ms. Autum Whiteman, HPS; Superintendent Brad Moore, 
Fergus County Public Schools (FCPS); Mr. Jeff Southworth, FCPS School Board Trustee; Ms. Rhonda Long, 
Fergus County Superintendent of Schools; Principal Mathew Lewis, FCPS; Ms. Rebekah Rhoades, Business 
Manager, FCPS; Superintendent Matt Torix, Laurel Public Schools (LPS); Principal Melissa Byington, LPS; 
Assistant Principal John Stilson, LPS; Ms. Charla Wetsch, Director of Curriculum and Assessment, LPS; Ms. 
Brittani Hunter, LPS School Board Chair; Superintendent Ron Goodman, Libby Public School District (LPSD); Mr. 
Scott Beagle, Curriculum Director, LPSD,  Ms. Alida Snow, LPDS School Board Chair; Superintendent Dan 
McGee, Liberty Elementary School District (LESD); Mr. David Hofer, LESD School Board Chair; Ms. Jenine 
Synness, Business Manager & Clerk, LESD; Mr. Todd A. Hanson, Managing Partner, 4 Poles Educational 
Consulting Group; Superintendent Don Christman, Lockwood Public Schools (LPS); Principal Gwen Poole, LPS; 
Assistant Principal Cole Cavan, LPS; Superintendent Jason Sargent, St. Ignatius Public Schools; Superintendent 
Dan Grabowska, Park City Schools (PCS); Ms. Breann Streck, PCS School Board Trustee; Mr. Fred Anderson, 
Former State Representative; Mr. James Easton, Empowered Workforce Strategist, Montana Chamber 
Foundation; Ms. Donna Hutchison, Vice President of Partnerships and Policy, Pearson Virtual Schools; 
Superintendent Mark Johnston, Ronan Public Schools (RPS); Ms. Sandra Beal, Director of Curriculum, Federal 
Programs, and Grants, RPS; Principal Kevin Kenelty, RPS; Principal Frank Jobe, RPS; Superintendent Todd 
Fiske, Florence Public Schools (FPS); Principal Scott March, FPS; Principal Sheree Jenkins, FPS; Principal 
Chrissy Hulla, FPS; Ms. Ali Bristow, High School Counselor, FPS; Mr. James Baxley, Teacher, FPS; Ms. Bobbie 
Kettlehut, FPS School Board Trustee; Mr. Jeff Wium, FPS Parent/Community Member; Mr. Gabe Wium, Student; 
Ms. Baily Goodwine, School Board Chair, Yellowstone Experience School (YES); Ms. Leslie Kennedy, Applicant; 
Ms. Emily Post, Applicant; Representative Sue Vinton; Ms. Moffie Funk, Montanans Organized for Education; Mr. 
Doug Reisig, Montana Rural Education Association; Ms. Patricia Doyle; Ms. Melissa Casanova; Ms. Beth 
Sampson; Ms. Elizabeth Kaleva, Kaleva Law Office; Superintendent Chad Johnson, Livingston Public Schools; 
Ms. Kate Bower, Livingston; Ms. Amy Clark, Livingston; Ms. Becky Ayler, Livingston; Mr. Crystal Quillen, 
Livingston; Ms. Emily Oldaugh, Livingston; Ms. Katy Brenner, Livingston; Ms. Kelly Miller, Livingston; Mr. Sean 
Batura, Livingston; Mr. John Heidke, Livingston; Ms. Vanessa Kurtz, Livingston; Mr. Joseph Kleinsasser, 
Livingston; Ms. Sara Maria Driscoll, Livingston; Mr. Sean Batura, Livingston 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 

Board member Rasmussen moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by 
Board member Quinlan. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
Chair Tharp outlined the process for the meeting, explained that time will be made for public comment after each 
school presentation and at the end of the meeting, and that written public comment can be sent to the Board 
office. 



Board of Public Education December 11, 2024  Page 2 
 

 
 CHARTER SCHOOL COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman  

Board Charter Committee Chair Hamman opened the item and asked Executive Director Flynn to explain how the 
interview process will proceed.  Ms. Flynn explained the schedule of interviews, when breaks will be included, that 
the meeting will be recorded and posted on the Board website at the conclusion of the meeting, and explained 
how public comment will be handled for each item. 
 
8:30 AM  BUTTE PATHWAY ACADEMY  

Judy Jonart, Superintendent; Ron Ricketts, Curriculum Director; Suzanne Evans, 
Curriculum Coordinator; Melissa Johnson, Special Education, Adult Basic 
Education, and Alternative Program Director; Keith Miller, Middle School Principal 

Superintendent Jonart introduced the BPS team and reviewed the application for the Butte Pathway Academy, an 
alternative school with enhanced flexibility for students and connections to future careers. Board members asked 
questions of Superintendent Jonart and team members regarding specific items in the application. Dr. McLean 
commended BPS on the application. 
    
9:00 AM  BIG HORN ACADEMY  

Tobin Novasio, Superintendent; Jodeen Marston, School Board Chair; Taylor 
Sidwell, Principal; Autumn Whiteman, Counselor 

Superintendent Tobin Novasio introduced the team present with him and his team reviewed the application for an 
alternative school for students who are at-risk of not graduating, then answered Board members’ questions 
regarding the charter proposal. Dr. McLean provided comments in support of the proposal. 
 
9:30 AM CENTRAL MONTANA CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION ACADEMY  
 Brad Moore, Superintendent; Jeff Southworth, School Board Trustee; Rhonda 

Long, Fergus County Superintendent of Schools; Mathew Lewis, High School 
Principal; Rebekah Rhoades, Business Manager 

Superintendent Moore presented the proposal for a Career and Technical Education Public Charter School, a 
school focused on bridging the gap between high school and career, and discussed how the school will function 
before County Superintendent Long explained how the Hutterite Colonies in the surrounding community will be 
included in the school for additional educational opportunities for their students. School Board Trustee Southworth 
added additional comments before Board members asked questions of the group. Dr. McLean and Mr. Doug 
Reisig offered supporting comments for the proposed charter school. 
 
10:00 AM  LAUREL VIRTUAL ACADEMY  

Matt Torix, Superintendent; Dr. Melissa Byington, High School Principal; John 
Stilson, High School Assistant Principal; Charla Wetsch, Director of Curriculum 
and Assessment; Brittani Hunter, School Board Chair 

Dr. Melissa Byington gave the presentation for the Laurel Virtual Academy, a new online platform for students in 
Laurel, which they hope will include local homeschooled students, and students who have left the traditional 
school model.  Members of the team provided information regarding the application before the team answered 
Board members’ questions.  Dr. McLean offered support from OCHE. 
 
10:30 AM   LIBBY CENTRAL CHARTER SCHOOL  

Ron Goodman, Superintendent; Scott Beagle, Curriculum Director; Alida Snow, 
School Board Chair 

Superintendent Goodman discussed the current school structure in Libby for their alternative school program then 
reviewed the application for the Libby Central Charter School, which was necessitated by the growing need for 
alternative education offerings in Libby. Mr. Scott Beagle reviewed the application, and the need expressed from 
the community for an alternative program.  The team answered Board members’ questions. Dr. McLean 
commented that the infrastructure already in place to help support the proposed charter school. 
 
11:00 AM  LIBERTY ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL  

Dan McGee, Superintendent; David Hofer, School Board Chair; Jenine Synness, 
Business Manager & Clerk; Todd A. Hanson, Managing Partner, 4 Poles 
Educational Consulting Group; Lona Running Wolf, Partner, 4 Poles Educational 
Consulting Group 



Board of Public Education December 11, 2024  Page 3 
 

School Board Chair Hofer gave opening remarks on the request from LESD for a charter school, before 
Superintendent McGee reviewed the district application specific to offering English as a Second Language for 
their Hutterite students.  Ms. Jenine Synness and Mr. Todd Hanson also made remarks regarding the application 
from LESD.  Members of the team answered Board members’ questions. 
 
12:30 PM  LION’S PATH ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL  

Don Christman, Superintendent; Gwen Poole, High School Principal; Cole Cavan, 
High School Assistant Principal 

Superintendent Christman opened the presentation and Ms. Gwen Poole and Mr. Cole Cavan presented the 
vision for the Lion’s Path Academy Charter School for the Lockwood School District, an alternative school for 
students who are academically or behaviorally at-risk.  Upon completion of the presentation the group answered 
Board members’ questions.  Dr. McLean made comments in support of the proposed school. 
 
1:00 PM  MISSION CAREER FORWARD CHARTER ACADEMY  
   Jason Sargent, Superintendent 
Superintendent Sargent presented the application for a Public Charter School for St. Ignatius that will offer career 
exploration and pathways for students.  Superintendent Sargent answered Board members’ questions regarding 
the proposed charter school.  Dr. McLean made comments in support of the proposed school. 
    
1:30 PM   MONTANA CONNECTIONS ACADEMY  

Dan Grabowska, Superintendent; Breann Streck, School Board Trustee; Fred 
Anderson, Former State Representative; James Easton, Empowered Workforce 
Strategist, Montana Chamber Foundation; Donna Hutchison, Vice President of 
Partnerships and Policy, Pearson Virtual Schools 

Superintendent Grabowska and School Board Trustee Streck presented the application for the Montana 
Connections Academy, a statewide online instructional academy for students. Former Representative Anderson 
spoke in support of the proposed online charter school.  Board members asked questions of the team and 
discussed concerns over Average Number Belonging funding and the impact to local taxpayers. Ms. Bea Kaleva 
gave public comment and addressed the previously stated concerns and spoke in favor of parent supported 
learning.  Ms. Beth Sampson, Helena, gave public comment in support of Montana Connections Academy, and 
Dr. McLean offered support from the Montana University System. 
 
2:00 PM  RONAN CHARTER ACADEMY  

Mark Johnston, Superintendent; Sandra Beal, Director of Curriculum, Federal 
Programs, and Grants; Kevin Kenelty, High School Principal; Frank Jobe, 
Middle School Principal  

Superintendent Johnston and Ms. Sandra Beal presented the Ronan Charter Academy application highlighting 
aspects of the application which include personalized learning, work based learning, career pathways, and 
integrating tribal education into the school. Principal Kenelty discussed the personalized learning plans high 
school students will have available to them and Principal Jobe discussed how the school will be made available 
for middle school students. The group answered Board members’ questions.  Dr. McLean made public comments 
in support of the application. 
 
2:30 PM  SOAR ACADEMY  

Todd Fiske, Superintendent; Scott March, High School Principal; Sheree Jenkins, 
Middle School Principal; Chrissy Hulla, Elementary School Principal; Ali Bristow, 
High School Counselor; James Baxley, Teacher; Bobbie Kettlehut, School Board 
Trustee; Jeff Wium, Parent/Community Member; Gabe Wium, Student 

Superintendent Fiske presented the Soar Academy request for a Public Charter School for Florence Public 
Schools which will offer personalized learning for students in an effort to retain students in their district and attract 
students who have left the district for homeschooling to return. Superintendent Fiske answered Board members’ 
questions.  Dr. McLean made comments in support of the proposed school. 
 
3:00 PM  YELLOWSTONE EXPERIENCE SCHOOL (YES)  

Baily Goodwine, School Board Chair; Leslie Kennedy, Applicant; Emily Post, 
Applicant 

School Board Chair Baily Goodwine presented the proposal for a public/private school district in a Montessori 
setting within the Livingston School District. Applicant Leslie Kennedy discussed the Montessori education model, 



Board of Public Education December 11, 2024  Page 4 
 

the project based learning model the school will employ, and applicant Ms. Emily Post discussed additional 
aspects of the proposed school/school district.  Board members asked questions of the group and community 
members gave public comment in support of and in opposition of the proposal.  Ms. Kelly Miller, Ms. Crystal 
Quillen, and Ms. Sara Maria Driscoll expressed concerns with leadership of the proposed school and ability to 
manage finances.  Ms. Kate Bower and Ms. Vanessa Kurtz spoke in favor of the proposed school.  
Superintendent Johnson noted that the district has begun the process to notify the electors of the district and to 
solicit input from the community regarding the request for a new district as required by law.  Chair Tharp brought 
to the Board’s attention that several potential members of the school board for the proposed school are not 
residents of Montana. 
 
Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed the process moving forward for the applications and what is expected of Board 
members ahead of the January 2025 Board meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment was made. 
 
ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 3:45 PM. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 
200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 406-444-0302. 
 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

FINANCIALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51010 Board of Public Education
ORG Budget Summary by OBPP Prog, Subclass, Fund
Data Selected for Month/FY:    01 (Jul)/2025 through 07 (Jan)/2025

Business Unit (All)
Program Year (All)
FY_BudPer (All)
Month (All)
Source of Auth (All)
Fund Type (All)
Account (All)
Acct Lvl 2 (All)
Account Type E
Project (All) Return to Menu
Ledger (All)

OBPP Program Subclass Fund Acct Lvl 1 Org ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCATION 591,202.00 232,971.53 0.00 358,230.47

235H1 ADMINISTRATION 546,722.00 221,008.65 0.00 325,713.35
01100 General Fund 535,164.00 221,008.65 0.00 314,155.35

61000 Personal Services 344,908.00 162,485.48 0.00 182,422.52
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 344,908.00 162,485.48 0.00 182,422.52

62000 Operating Expenses 190,256.00 58,523.17 0.00 131,732.83
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 190,256.00 58,523.17 0.00 131,732.83

(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02122 Advisory Council 11,510.00 0.00 0.00 11,510.00
61000 Personal Services 11,510.00 0.00 0.00 11,510.00

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 11,510.00 0.00 0.00 11,510.00

(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02219 Research Fund 48.00 0.00 0.00 48.00
61000 Personal Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

62000 Operating Expenses 48.00 0.00 0.00 48.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 48.00 0.00 0.00 48.00

(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235H4 SITSD RST 44,480.00 10,686.61 0.00 33,793.39
01100 General Fund 44,480.00 10,686.61 0.00 33,793.39

62000 Operating Expenses 44,480.00 10,686.61 0.00 33,793.39
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 44,480.00 10,686.61 0.00 33,793.39

(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235V1 RENEWAL COMM PRIVATE FUNDS 0.00 520.30 0.00 (520.30)
08084 Community Choice Schools 0.00 520.30 0.00 (520.30)

62000 Operating Expenses 0.00 520.30 0.00 (520.30)
20 Community Choice Schools 0.00 520.30 0.00 (520.30)

235V3 CCS COMMISSION UNSP 0.00 755.97 0.00 (755.97)
08084 Community Choice Schools 0.00 755.97 0.00 (755.97)

ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Subcl,Fund 1 of 2



OBPP Program Subclass Fund Acct Lvl 1 Org ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCA 235V3 CCS C  08084 Community Choice Schools 62000 Operating Expenses 0.00 755.97 0.00 (755.97)

20 Community Choice Schools 0.00 755.97 0.00 (755.97)

235Z1 WORKERS COMP. REDUCTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
01100 General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

61000 Personal Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02219 Research Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
61000 Personal Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 591,202.00 232,971.53 0.00 358,230.47

ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Subcl,Fund 2 of 2



    EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Item 1) 
 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp      
 

 
ITEM 1 

 
 

ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 
 
 

McCall Flynn 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    REPORTS – (Items 2-6) 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
 

ITEM 2 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
 
 

• Welcome New Board Member 
 
 

 
Dr. Tim Tharp 

 
  



ITEM 3 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 
 

McCall Flynn 
 

  



ITEM 4 
 
 

STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT  
 

• Transportation Report 
• Assessment Update 
• Federal Update 

• Accreditation Report 
• Content Standards Revision Update 

 
 

State Superintendent Susie Hedalen 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY2024 Pupil Transportation Report 
 

 

 

 
 As of December 16, 2024  

Historical View of Pupil Transportation Data:  

The table below provides the FY2024 data as well as a prior year historical comparison of data collected in 

the Pupil Transportation System maintained by the OPI.    
Category FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 

Number of Certified Bus Drivers  2,083 1,975 2,046 2,052 2,013 

Number of Bus Routes  2,297 2,328 2,290 2,191 2,154 

Total Pupil Ridership  83,843 69,953 78,500 77,049 74,780 

School Miles Traveled per Year  *13 M  
covid 

15.4 M 15.7 M 15.5 M 15.4 M 

Average Route Miles Traveled Per Day  48.80 49.50 50.9 49.60 50.2 

MHP Bus Inspections  4,324 4,322 4,309 4,209 4,288 

Number of Type A-E School Buses  3,471 3,527 3,579 3,693 3,740 

Number of District Owned Buses  1,357 1,412 1,401 1,448 1,459 

Number of Contractor Owned Buses  2,114 2,115 2,178 2,245 2,281 

Number of Individual Contracts  740 722 712 710 723 

Amount Paid for Individual Contracts  $563,501 $528,930 $537,349 $569,868 $578,293 

State Reimbursement   $11.35 M $10.92 M $11.04 M $10.7 M $10.4 M 

County Reimbursement  $11.28 M $10.92 M $11.0 M $10.7 M $10.3 M 

  

MAPT Annual Bus Driver Conference 

  

 
FY 2014 Statewide Pupil Transportation Report   



FY2024 Pupil Transportation Report 
 

The Montana Association of Pupil Transportation (MAPT) annual school bus driver conference was held in 

Great Falls in June 2024.  A total of 300 drivers attended in-person, 38 drivers participated over Zoom, 83 

drivers received first aid and CPR training, and 65 people received supervisor training.   

 

Regional Bus Driver Training 

MAPT trainers travel to various school districts and provide safety training to bus drivers.  Pursuant to the 

2022 Montana School Bus Standards, drivers are required to receive a minimum of the mandatory 15 hours of 

training annually.   

 

According to the information provided by MAPT, there were 14 school districts that hosted bus driver 

trainings.  392 drivers attended these trainings, and a total of 84 training hours were provided for FY 2024.  

Some of the topics that were discussed included, but not limited to the following: 

• Railroad information  Pre/Post tip Inspections  First Aid & CPR 

• Distracted Driving  Student Management   New Laws & Updates 

• Winter Driving  Mirrors & Blind Spots   Lights on the School Bus 

• Handling Parent Contact Evacuation Procedures  Smoking the School Bus  
    

Driver Shortage 

Previous reports have provided information relating to the shortage of bus drivers, and the steps districts have 

taken such as combining or eliminating routes.  This problem continues and in order for some districts to 

continue to operate routes, OPI can report that there are currently 75 school districts that have purchased and 

are operating Type E buses on routes.   

 

Notification of the 17th National Congress of School Transportation Specifications (NCST) 

The NCST Conference is scheduled to take place in Des Moines, Iowa May 4-7, 2025.  The board can expect  

updates and changes for Montana specifications and procedures in the near future.   

 

Thank you, 

 

Donell Rosenthal 

Director of Pupil Transportation 

drosenthal@mt.gov   

(406) 461-9316 

 

https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=Ab5BKCdY9kc%3d&portalid=182
mailto:drosenthal@mt.gov


 
 

 
    

1 
 

January 2024 BPE 
Assessment Update 

 
MAST Window 1 Summary 

Overview  
• The first statewide operational window of MAST ran October 14 through 

November 22, 2024.  
• Students took 2 ELA testlets (literary and informational) and a pre-scheduled 

number of math testlets aligned to local scope and sequence (between 2-5). 
• Score reports were delivered each Thursday after students completed testing. 
• Participation estimations (calculated based on students completing all assigned 

testlets): ELA-98.5%; Math-97.8%  
 
Testing Trends  

• Many schools started testing on the first day of the window. 
• ELA tests were commonly administered together (literary and informational) while 

math testlets were administered one at a time throughout the window. 
• Some schools chose to administer multiple testlets and subjects together as was 

previous practice (longer testing sessions). 
• Some challenges (ex: student portal installation) caused more summative, end of 

window testing practices. 
• 95% of testlets were started and completed in the same day. 
• All 12 math testlets in each grade level were administered across the state in 

window 1. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
2 

 

 
ELA Window 1 Testing Time  
 

 
 
Math Window 1 Testing Time  

 
Average Testing Times Across Testlets (Minutes) 
 Average 50th 

Percentile 
Average 80th 
Percentile  

Average 90th 
Percentile  

Grade 3 10 16 21 
Grade 4 13 22 31 
Grade 5 11 17 23 
Grade 6 12 18 22 
Grade 7 13 19 24 
Grade 8 11 17 21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
3 

 

MAST Window 2 Overview  
Testlets  

• Window 2 opened January 13 and closes February 21, 2025. 
• Each student takes 2 ELA testlets, an ELA performance task, and a pre-

scheduled number of math testlets aligned to local scope and sequence 
(between 2-5). 

 
Resources  

• Rubrics for Grade 3, Grades 4 and 5, and Grades 6-8 are available to educators 
to support understanding of assessment scoring. 

• Assessment Specifications and Blueprint documents are available for both math 
and ELA providing standards and specifications for each testlet.  

• ELA and math Testlet Timing Documents support teachers in planning for 
administration by providing estimated testing times for each testlet.  

 
 

If you have any questions, please contact: 
Cedar Rose, Assessment Director 

cedar.rose@mt.gov 

https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/MGA-ELA-Writing-Scoring-Rubric-G3.pdf
https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/MGA-ELA-Writing-Scoring-Rubric-G4-5.pdf
https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/MGA-ELA-Writing-Scoring-Rubric-G6-8.pdf
https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/MasteryGuideTM-Mathematics-Assessment-Specifications-and-Blueprints-v1.0.pdf
https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/MasteryGuideTM-English-Language-Arts-Assessment-Specifications.pdf
https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Montana-Mast-ELA-Testlet-Timing.pdf
https://newmeridiancorp.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Montana-Mast-Math-Testlet-Timing.pdf


 
 

Federal Update 
January 2025 

 
Updates below are for the following: 

1. Title I Part A 
2. Title I Part C- Migrant 
3. Title I Part D 
4. Title III 
5. Title IV Part A 
6. Title IX Part A 
7. High Risk Designation and Timeline for 2025 

 
1. Title I Part A:  District Title IA program plans were approved in October and districts are currently 

implementing their plans and submitting cash requests as they spend down their budgets.  Districts 
receiving Title funding are also required to undergo a desk audit every seven years to ensure they 
comply the program assurances.  Nineteen districts were monitored over the Fall and twenty-two 
districts will be monitored this Spring.  Districts that have desk audit findings will be required to 
implement and report corrective actions to the OPI.   

2. Title I Part C:  The Title 1C MEP is busy finding and identifying eligible Montana families through a 
network of trained recruiters at the local level, as well as collecting the required eligibility and other 
federally required minimum data elements for the Consolidated State Performance Report which is 
due this month.    

3. Title I Part D:  Entities that receive funding are the MT Department of Corrections and school districts 
that have a facility for neglected and delinquent youth within their boundaries.  Each Fall and Spring, 
their staff who serve this unique student population attend a High Tiered Community of Practice 
Conference to share best practices and explore facility service models.  The Fall Conference took place 
in October at the Shodair Children’s Hospital in Helena and the Spring Conference will be in March at 
the Pine Hills Correctional Facility for Boys.   

4. Title III:   While many districts, especially the large ones, are identifying English Language/Multi-
Language Learners (ELs/MLs), many smaller ones still need ongoing training on how to identify 
potential ELs.  A need we have seen throughout the state is that our schools want support on 
differentiating instruction, increasing engagement, and teaching language to identified ELs/MLs.  To 
support these needs, the OPI Title III Specialist is working on the following supports:   

• A Learning Hub course to instruct districts on how to identify English Learners/Multilingual 

Learners.   

• Updating guidance and resources on the website 

• Meeting monthly with district staff and other stakeholders 

• Developing presentations for a variety of stakeholder groups 

• Updating monitoring requirements for ELs and Title III recipients  



• Reviewing Title III allocations to districts and consortiums to ensure funds are being utilized 

efficiently and correctly 

5. Title IV Part A:  Districts in the 2024-25 school year are utilizing their Title IV A funding for a variety of 
supplemental student services including:   

• Supporting elective and supplemental courses to provide students more options that fit their 

skills and interests 

• Drug and alcohol counselors 

• CTE courses and programs 

• Community service and volunteer initiatives 

• Civics and civic engagement initiatives  

• Student mentoring programs 

6.  Title IX A:  The OPI McKinney Vento Specialist and Homeless Liaison has been working on the 
following: 

• Clarifying programmatic expectations and making resources and supplemental materials readily 
available. 

• Collaborating with School House Connections, a national non-profit advocacy organization to 

provide a PD webinar series on homelessness. 

• Finalizing liquidation of the American Rescue Plan Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 

Relief Homeless Children and Youth (ARP ESSER HCY) funds from the 2021 American Rescue Plan.   

7. High Risk Designation and Timeline for 2025:  
a. In compliance with 2 CFR 200.332(b), the OPI assesses subrecipients to identify those at greater 

risk of noncompliance with federal laws, regulations and grant award provisions. OPI uses the 
risk assessment when evaluating the entity’s applications for competitive and continuing 
federal formula awards to determine whether specific conditions and/or additional monitoring 
will be applied to the entity’s federal awards.   

b. All subgrantees that receive funds through OPI as a pass-through agency are subject to a Risk 
Assessment.  Therefore, Each OPI unit is responsible for administering federal dollars and is 
required to individually determine risk for their assigned program each year.   

c. Timeline: High Risk letters sent out to districts by March14, 2025 
 

 



  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Accreditation Update 

Board of Public Education- January 
 
Accreditation Platform 

● The Accreditation Platform opened December 2, 2024 
● Approximately 90% of districts have logged onto the platform and contact has been made to 

100% of districts concerning platform and login information 
● All open standards are actively being completed. Rubrics containing Infinite Campus data will 

open on February 3rd to offer districts the most current information to certify 
● Five schools have completed all open standards with approximately 20 more schools having 

one to two standards remaining uncertified 
● We have received positive feedback from superintendents on the ease of use and ability to 

save work 
● Standards are showing at least ⅕ of districts submissions ready for review 

 
Trainings Offered 

● At least 15 Training sessions offered to various groups and specific sessions for each area.  
● Individualized support through 1-hour virtual work sessions have started and will continue 

through February  
● We are fielding questions daily from districts and offering support 
● Recording of past public training sessions are available on our website  
● Working with various OPI Departments to ensure they understand the information and can 

support districts  
 
Charter Rubric Updates 

● Met with the Montana Board of Public Education Executive Director and the Program Officer 
to go over the rubrics for the charter schools  

● We have added the charter rubrics to our test site and awaiting final approval  
● Charter Schools have an additional 14 areas to complete. Three areas will begin in the 2025-

2026 school year (Graduation Rate, Attendance (annual), Recurrent enrollment). One area 
contains open ended questions that will not be scored.  

 
To Come 

● Submissions due February 28th, 2025 
● After which we will be doing in person training our reviewers to score each of the new areas. 

At least two sets of eyes on every new rubric.  
● Reviews will be complete by May Board of Public Education Meeting 
● Reconvene with the think tank to determine cycles and the criteria reference guide 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Presented by Crystal Andrews, Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 



 

 
    

1 
 

January 2025 BPE  
Content Standards Update 

 
English Language Arts (ELA) and Literacy Standards: 
The ELA standards are in the Negotiated Rulemaking phase of revisions. The work of the Negotiated 
Rulemaking Committee (NRC) began with an orientation on December 18, 2024, to prepare the 
committee with information to begin the process. As of January 8th, the committee completed rulemaking 
on standards kindergarten – sixth grade standards and the proposed literacy practices. Recordings will be 
posted by the time of the BPE meeting for public viewing. All critical documents are posted on the website 
for public viewing as well. Diane Groves as approved as the facilitator for the NRC process by the 
committee; she has conducted facilitation for the past four sets of accreditation standards as well.  
 
Schedule:  
Negotiated Rulemaking for ELA Content Standards - Orientation 

▪ December 18, 4:00-6:00pm - Virtual - Agenda 
Rulemaking Sessions #1, #2, #3 - Doubletree Inn - Helena, MT or Virtual 

▪ January 6, 2025 - 12:00pm - 5:00pm - Agenda (recording and minutes to be posted) 
▪ January 7, 2025 - 8:30am - 4:30pm - Agenda (recording and minutes to be posted) 
▪ January 8, 2025 - 8:30 am - 1:00pm - Agenda (recording and minutes to be posted) 

Rulemaking Sessions #4 & 5 - Virtual Only 
▪ January 30, 2025 - 8:30am - 12:30pm 
▪ January 31, 2025 - 8:30am - 12:30pm 

 
Public comment can be made at the end of each rulemaking session or by  
emailing claire.mikeson@mt.gov by 8:30 the morning of rulemaking sessions.  
 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 
 

 Name Location Role Served Background 

1 Justine Alberts Helena 
K-12 School 

Administrators, Parents, 
Taxpayers 

Helena SD Curriculum Director, Former 
Elementary Principal and Higher 

Education, Served on Assessment NRC 

2 Nicole 
Simonsen 

Culbertson K-12 School 
Administrators 

Former 1st Grade and Elementary 
Teacher, School Administrator in 

Culbertson School District 

3 Tawny Cale Great Falls K-12 Educator, MT Tribe 
Representative 

HS English Educator and current Indian 
Education for All Instructional Coach for 

Great Falls Public Schools 

https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=J2huhsLZS8M%3d&portalid=182
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/81078906447
https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=xTcURxRzmik%3d&portalid=182
https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=xTcURxRzmik%3d&portalid=182
https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=xTcURxRzmik%3d&portalid=182
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/81078906447
mailto:claire.mikeson@mt.gov


 
    

2 
 

4 Jodi Carlson Billings Higher Education Faculty 

Director of Education and Teacher 
Preparation at Rocky Mountain College, 

previously a 1st Grade teacher for 
bilingual students 

5 Clifton Grilley Power Parent 
Montana parent, has served on prior 

committees for agency 

6 Janelle Beers Dillon 
Parent, Taxpayer, K-12 

Educator 

MT Small Schools Alliance Executive 
Director, previously a school 

administrator &  secondary ELA educator 

7 Barbara Frank Missoula 
K-12 Administrator, Parent, 

Taxpayers 

Montana Educator for 20+ years, former 
Elementary principal, and current 

Curriculum Director for MCPS 

8 Crystal Kain Polson 
K-12 School 

Administrators, K-12 
Teachers, Parents 

7-12 Educator, Taught in Class C-AA, 
Innovation Coordinator for Polson 

Schools 

9 Erin Ellis Missoula 
School Administrator, K-12 

Educator 

Hellgate Elementary Director of Pk-8 
Assessment and Curriculum, P-6th 

Grade and Higher Education experience 

10 Logan Brower Boulder K-12 Educator 
HS Teacher in Jefferson School District, 

State Writing Project in Idaho, 

12 Sue Corrigan Kalispell 
School District Trustees, K-

12 Teachers, Parents, 
Taxpayers 

Retired Nationally Board-Certified 
Special education teacher, MTSBA 

President 

13 Jamie Fuller Augusta 
Business Official, 

Taxpayers 
School District Business Official for 

Augusta School District 

14 Jacie Jeffers Billings 
K-12 Educator, MT Tribe 

Representative 
Indian Education Instructional Coach, K-

12 Educator, Billings SD 

15 Christy Mock-
Stutz 

Helena OPI OPI Assistant Chief Program Officer 

16 Marie Judisch Ledger OPI Senior Manager of Teaching and Learning 

 
OPI Staff Support 

- Dr. Julie Murgel – Chief Program Officer 
- Aimee Konzen – Professional Learning Manager 
- Claire Mikeson – English Language Arts and Literacy Coordinator 

 

 
 
 



 
    

3 
 

Website Presence & Resources  

 

 
 

Overview of Proposed Revisions in Current State 
- Restructuring to Grade Level Standards within ARM to match the rest of the content areas 
- Moving to Four Domains: Reading, Writing, Research and Inquiry, and Speaking and Listening 

o Distributing Language standards in reading, writing, speaking and listening 
o Creating a glossary of terms 

- Established Literacy Practices for K-12 
- Condensing standards to a main standard and moving sub-standards to guidance documents, 

removing redundant standards and examples 
- More explicit standards for Early Literacy and reading development toward proficiency 
- More work to be done on authentic integration of IEFA, robust guidance documents to follow 
- Expanded guidance documents for vertical alignment, specifications of the standard, proficiency, 

exemplars, etc. 
 

 
 

For questions, please contact: Marie Judisch, marie.judisch@mt.gov 

https://opi.mt.gov/Educators/Teaching-Learning/K-12-Content-Standards/Standards-Revision/ELA#11089913042-proposed-standards-draft-and-relevant-research


ITEM 5 
 
 

GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 
 
 

Dylan Klapmeier 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 6 
 
 

COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION 
REPORT 

 
 

Dr. Angela McLean 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   CHARTER COMMITTEE – (Items 7-8) 
 
 

Jane Hamman 
 
 

ITEM 7 
 
 

UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE 
SCHOOL COMMISSION 

 
 

Trish Schreiber 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 8 
 
 

WORK SESSION ON THE APPROVAL AND 
DENIAL OF PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 

 
 

Jane Hamman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Applicants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Is there an 

overall intent 
to create an 

INNOVATIVE 
public charter 

school? 
(Yes or No) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Is there an 

overall intent 
to create a 

HIGH- 
PERFORMIN 

G public 
charter 
school? 

(Yes or No) 

 
 
 

 
Is the 

ACADEMIC 
PROGRAM 

consistent with 
a high-quality 
public charter 

school? 
(Consistent, 

Partially 
Consistent, or 
Inconsistent) 

 
 

 
Is the 

SCHOOL 
GOVERNAN 
CE consistent 
with a high- 

quality public 
charter 
school? 

(Consistent, 
Partially 

Consistent, or 
Inconsistent) 

 
 

 
Is the 

BUSINESS 
OPERATION 
S consistent 
with a high- 

quality public 
charter 
school? 

(Consistent, 
Partially 

Consistent, or 
Inconsistent) 

 
 

 
Is the 

COMMUNITY 
SUPPORT 

AND NEED 
consistent with 
a high-quality 
public charter 

school? 
(Consistent, 

Partially 
Consistent, or 
Inconsistent) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Has the 

applicant 
demonstrated 
CLEAR AND 
CONVINCIN 
G PROOF of 
the likelihood 

of success? 
(Yes or No) 

 
 
 
 

 
Has the 

applicant 
demonstrated 
that they can 
OPEN AND 
OPERATE a 

successful 
public charter 

school? 
(Yes or No) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Based on your 

overview, 
would you 

recommend 
the Board 

approve this 
application? 
(Yes or No) 

(1) Big Horn Academy 7 7 6.5 6 7 6.5 6 7 7 

(2) Butte Pathway Academy 6 6 6.5 7 7 7 6 7 7 

(5) Libby Central Charter School 7 7 5.5 6.5 7 6.5 5 6 6 

(10) Ronan Charter Academy 6 6 5.5 5 6 4.5 6 6 6 

(3) Central Montana CTE Academy 7 6 6 5.5 6 6 4 5 5 
(7) Lion's Path Academy Charter 
School 6 4 3.5 5 6 4.5 4 4 4 

(4) Laurel Virtual Academy 6 5 4 5.5 5.5 3.5 2 3 3 
(8) Mission Career Forward Charter 
Academy 

 
6 

 
6 

 
3 

 
4.5 

 
5 

 
5.5 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

(11) SOAR Academy 6 6 4.5 4 5 4.5 2 4 3 

(6) Liberty Academy Charter School 6 5 4.5 4 4 6.5 4 4 2 
(12) Yellowstone Experience School 
(YES) 6 4 5 1 1.5 4 0 0 0 

 



      LICENSURE COMMITTEE – (Items 9-13) 
 
 

Jane Hamman 
 
 

ITEM 9 
 
 

INFORMATION ON PRAXIS 
REGENERATED TEST REVIEW AND 
QUALIFYING SCORES FOR SOCIAL 

STUDIES, INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGY, 
AND FAMILY AND CONSUMER SCIENCE 

 
 

Crystal Andrews 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: January 23, 2025 

  

Presentation ETS Praxis Fall Test Review(s) 
Panel Review and Recommendations  

  
Presenter Crystal Andrews           
 
Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 

Office of Public Instruction 
 

  

Overview The current Social Studies Test #5081, Family and 
Consumer Science Test #5122, and Technology 
Education Test #5051 will be retiring in August 
2025. The regenerated test(s) will need a 
qualifying score set for the state of Montana. This 
is an overview of the process and 
recommendations from the expert panels. 
Recommendations from the Praxis Working 
Committee and Montana Council of Deans of 
Education will be presented along with the 
request for action from the board at the March 
BPE meeting.  

  
Requested Decision(s) Information only 
  
Related Issue(s)  
  
Recommendation(s) None 
  



1 
 

 

 

\ 

 

ETS Praxis Fall Test Review(s) 
Panel Review and Recommendations 

Informational Item 
 

Social Studies Test Review 
• Social Studies: Content Knowledge #5081 replaced with #5581 Social Studies 
• Panel met virtually October 8, 2024, 2-3:20pm 
• Panel of 4 teachers and 4 EPP faculty, (plus 3 PWC members/observers) 
• Regenerated test with current test sunsetting in August 2025 
 

What has Changed? 

 
Data Review 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Panel General Feedback 

• Discussion of the vast amount of content and time periods with a Broadfield test; need for more document-
based questions, concerns about the geography section and geographic skills but overall, okay with the test 

 

Panel Recommendation  



2 
 

• First vote: 8 said 153 and 1 said 160 
o Discussion – wanted the rigor but realities of teacher retention and recruitment if we go higher than 

surrounding states, transferability 
• Second vote: 7 said 153 and 1 said 160 
• Final recommendation is 153 (7-1 vote) 

Next Steps 
• Information with recommendation will go to the PWC and MCDE 
 

Family Consumer Science Test Review 
• Family and Consumer Sciences #5122 replaced with #5123 (same name) 
• Panel met virtually October 8, 2024, 2-4:05pm 
• Panel of 3 teachers, 1 EPP faculty, 1 OPI content specialist 
• Regenerated test with current test sunsetting in August 2025 

 

What has Changed? 

 

Data Review  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Panel General Feedback  
• Discussion of difficulties with such a broad field/discipline, questions regarding career pathways, financial 

questions, customer vs client, but overall, okay with test 
 

Panel Recommendation 
• First vote: 151=2, 144=1, 158=2 
• Significant Discussion – wanted the rigor but realities of teacher retention and recruitment if we go higher than 

surrounding states, struggling with deciding what to do; not comfortable going as high as 158, concerns about no 
data 



3 
 

• Second vote: 153 (5-0) with a request to review the results in two years (25-26, 26-27 so summer/early fall 2027) 
Next Steps 

• Information with recommendation will go to the PWC and MCDE 
 
Technology Education Test Review  

• Technology Education #5051 replaced with #5053 Technology and Engineering Education 
• Panel met virtually October 8, 2024, 2-2:50pm 
• Panel of 1 EPP faculty and 1 OPI content specialist 
• Regenerated test with current test sunsetting in August 2025 

 

What has Changed? 

 
 

Data Review 
 

 
Panel General Feedback 

• Overall positive feedback with concerns over only a handful of questions 
 

Panel Recommendation 
• First vote: split between 157 and 151 
• Discussion of leaning toward lower because of the diversity of the field in Montana, recruitment in this high-

need field, and looking at surrounding states  
• Second vote: 153 (2-0) 

Next Steps 
• Information with recommendation will go to the PWC and MCDE 



ITEM 10 
 
 

INFORMATION ON ANNUAL EDUCATOR 
LICENSURE REPORT 

 
 

Crystal Andrews 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: January 23, 2025 

  

Presentation Annual Educator Licensure Report 
  
Presenter Crystal Andrews           
 
Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 

Office of Public Instruction 
 

  

Overview This presentation will be a review of licensure 
data for 2024.  
 
 

  
Requested Decision(s) Information only 

 

  
Related Issue(s)  
  
Recommendation(s) None 
  



P a g e  | 1 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

 
 

January 23, 2025 
 

OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report  
 

This report is a summary of educator licensure activity for 2024 as identified in the areas of:  
 
Tables include: 
1)  Licenses issued for: renewals, upgrading from one class to another, and adding an endorsement 
 
2) Those obtaining their initial Montana educator license; the class of license and endorsement(s) area 
 
3)  Internships and Emergency Authorizations of Employment issued to school districts and the subject areas  
 
4)  A list of academic and character denials and the licensure request that was denied 
 
5)  A list of the license class and endorsement areas that were unusual cases  
 
6)  A five- year view of the number of newly hired educators in the critical shortage areas  
 
7)  A five- year view of licensure history, new hires, and renewals  

 
 
Please see the tables below.  
 
 
 
 

Montana Educator Licenses 



P a g e  | 2 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

 
Montana offers eight different license types. Brief descriptions of each are noted below. 
 

• Class 1 – Professional Teacher’s License. Those who hold a master’s degree in education or an endorsable teaching area 
from a regionally accredited college or university or obtained certification by the National Board for Professional Teaching 
Standards. 

 
• Class 2 – Standard Teacher’s License. Those who hold a bachelor’s degree from a regionally accredited college or university 

and completed an approved educator preparation program including appropriate supervised teaching experience and either 
holds a current standard, unrestricted out-of-state educator license and two years of successful teaching experience or a 
minimum passing score on the Praxis Subject Assessment or a passing score on a student teaching portfolio or a 3.00 or higher 
coursework GPA. 
 

• Class 3 - Administrative License. Categories are: Superintendent; Elementary Principal; Secondary Principal; K-12 Principal; 
Supervisor; Special Education Supervisor. 
 

• Class 4 - Career and Technical Education. These licenses are specific to career and technical education. There are three 
types of Class 4 licenses:  

o Class 4A. Those holding a valid Montana teaching license, but without an appropriate career and technical education 
endorsement.  

o Class 4B. Issued to individuals with a certificate of completion from an apprenticeship program or associate degree, or a 
bachelor’s degree from a regionally accredited college or university, but do not hold a valid Montana teaching license with 
the appropriate career and technical education endorsement. 

o Class 4C. Those individuals who hold at least a high school diploma or high school equivalency diploma and meet the 
minimum requirements for endorsement. 
 

• Class 5 - Provisional License. May be issued to applicants that need to complete course work for full licensure. Categories are: 
Elementary; Secondary, K-12 and P-12 Special Education Levels; Superintendent; Elementary Principal; Secondary Principal; K-
12 Principal; Supervisor; Specialist. There are three types of Class 5 licenses: 

o Class 5A. Issued to individuals seeking their initial Montana educator license who meet all licensure requirements except 
need successful completion of the Montana required* Praxis test.  

o Class 5B. Issued to individuals who hold a bachelor’s degree from a regionally accredited college or university but have 
not completed an approved educator preparation program. 



P a g e  | 3 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

o Class 5C. Issued to individuals seeking a license in Montana whose degree is more than five years old, do not hold a 
current standard, unrestricted educator license, and have not earned 60 professional development units within the five- 
year period preceding the effective date of the license. 

 
• Class 6 - Specialist License. Categories are: School Counselor and School Psychologist.  

 
• Class 7 – Native American Language and Culture Specialist. Based upon verification by the authorized representative of a 

tribal government that has a memorandum of understanding with the Superintendent of Public Instruction. 
 

• Class 8 - Dual Credit Postsecondary Faculty License. Required (unless already licensed as Class 1, 2 or 4) whenever a 
college or university faculty member is teaching a dual credit course at the institution for which one or more students will earn 
both high school and college credit. 
 
 

*Montana does not require the Praxis test for educator licensure however it is one pathway to show content knowledge for a Class 2 license.  
  



P a g e  | 4 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

1.  Renewal License Table 
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
Description of Type of License on pages 2-3 

Renewal License Table 
Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4A 4B 4C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
Agriculture 5-12 6 14         20 
Agriculture Business 5-12     1      1 
Agriculture Mechanics 5-12      1     1 
Art K-12 32 66        1 99 
Assiniboine K-12         1  1 
Auto Body 5-12      2     2 
Automotive Technology 5-12    1  3     4 
Biology 5-12 33 35        3 71 
Blackfeet K-12         3  3 
Building Maintenance 5-12           0 
Building Trades 5-12    4 1 3     8 
Business Education 5-12 37 34        1 72 
Chemistry 5-12 13 13        4 30 
Chippewa K-12         1  1 
Communication 5-12 5 2         7 
Comp. and Info. Systems 5-12 4 5         9 
Computer Coding 5-12    2       2 
Comp. Inf. Systems 5-12    1 1      2 
Computer Science 5-12 4 6         10 
Cree K-12         1  1 
Crow K-12         3  3 
Culinary Arts 5-12    1 2      3 
Dakota K-12           0 
Diesel Mechanics 5-12      1     1 
Drafting 5-12    1 2 1     4 
DC- Anthropology 5-12          1 1 



P a g e  | 5 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4A 4B 4C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
DC- Business Comm. 5-12          1 1 
DC- Communication 5-12          1 1 
DC- Philosophy 5-12          1 1 
Early Childhood P-3 24 45         69 
Earth Science 5-12 7 5        1 13 
Economics 5-12 3 1         4 
Electronics 5-12    2       2 
Elementary K-8 528 920         1448 
Engineering 5-12           0 
English 5-12 84 116        2 202 
English Second Lang. K-12 15 9         24 
Family and Con. Science 5-12 12 20         32 
French K-12 8 8         16 
Geography 5-12 1 3         4 
German K-12 5 2         7 
Graphic Arts 5-12    4 1      5 
Health K-12 3 5         8 
Health and Physical Ed. K-12 73 117         190 
Health Prof.- Biotech. 5-12    3       3 
Health Prof.- Therap. 5-12    8       8 
History 5-12 42 73        2 117 
Industrial Mechanics 5-12    1       1 
Indus. Trades and Tech. Ed. 5-12 11 19         30 
Journalism 5-12 3          3 
Latin 5-12 1          1 
Library K-12 55 64         119 
Livestock Production 5-12     1 1     2 
Marketing Education 5-12 3 2         5 
Mathematics 5-12 79 87        2 168 
Metals 5-12    1 1 1     3 



P a g e  | 6 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4A 4B 4C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
Middle Grades 4-8  1         1 
Music K-12 38 64         102 
Physical Education K-12 1 3         4 
Physics 5-12 9 7        1 17 
Plant and Soil Sciences 5-12    2  1     3 
Political Science 5-12 14 14        1 29 
Principal 5-12   22        22 
Principal K-12   223        223 
Principal K-8   26        26 
PSC Early Childhood K-8  2         2 
PSC Gifted and Talented K-8 1          1 
PSC Tech. in Education K-12 2          2 
Psychology 5-12 7 9        3 19 
Reading K-12 110 145         255 
ROTC Instruction 5-12           0 
Russian K-12           0 
Salish K-12           0 
School Counseling K-12 1       74   75 
School Counselor K-12 44 8         52 
School Psychologist K-12       38    38 
Science (BF) 5-12 49 50        1 100 
Small Engines 5-12    3  1     4 
Social Studies (BF) 5-12 51 69         120 
Sociology 5-12 3         4 7 
Spanish K-12 15 20         35 
Special Education P-12 150 175         325 
Sp. Ed. Hearing Imp. P-12 1 1         2 
Sp. Ed. Vision Imp. P-12 3          3 
Superintendent K-12   81        81 
Supervisor- History 5-12    1        1 



P a g e  | 7 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4A 4B 4C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
Supervisor- Art K-12   1        1 
Supervisor- Sp. Ed. P-12   13        13 
Theater 5-12 3 4         7 
Traffic Education 5-12 19 13         32 
Videography 5-12           0 
Welding 5-12    1 1 1     3 
Totals 1612 2256 367 35 11 16 38 74 9 30 4448 

 
 
2.  Upgrade License Table 
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
Description of Type of License on pages 2-3 

Upgrade License Table 
Endorsement Area 1 2 3 6 PS 6 SC Total 
Art K-12  2    2 
Biology 5-12 2     2 
Business Education 5-12  1    1 
Chemistry 5-12 1     1 
Early Childhood P-3  2    2 
Elementary K-8 16 22    38 
English 5-12 8 3    11 
Family and Con. Science 5-12 2     2 
French K-12 1     1 
German K-12  1    1 
Health and Physical Ed. K-12 2 3    5 
History 5-12 3 4    7 
Mathematics 5-12 4 2    6 
Music K-12 1 1    2 
Physics 5-12  1    1 
Political Science 5-12 1     1 



P a g e  | 8 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

Endorsement Area 1 2 3 6 PS 6 SC Total 
Principal 5-12   1   1 
Principal K-12   4   4 
Principal K-8   1   1 
Reading K-12  1    1 
School Counseling K-12     8 8 
School Counselor K-12     3 3 
School Psychologist K-12    3  3 
Science (BF) 5-12 4 2    6 
Social Studies (BF) 5-12 3 3    6 
Spanish K-12 1     1 
Special Education P-12 11 9    20 
Superintendent K-12   3   3 
Theater 5-12  1    1 
Totals 60 58 9 3 11 141 

 



P a g e  | 9 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

3.  Add Endorsement Table 

January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
Description of Type of License on pages 2-3 

Add Endorsement License Table 
Endorsement Area 1 2 3 5 Total 
Early Childhood P-3    2 2 
Elementary K-8    8 8 
English 5-12 1    1 
Library K-12  1  1 2 
Mathematics 5-12    1 1 
Music K-12 1    1 
Social Studies (BF) 5-12    1 1 
Special Education P-12 1   12 13 
Supervisor- Sp. Ed. P-12   1  1 
Totals 3 1 1 25 30 

 
  



P a g e  | 10 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

4. New License Table 
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
Description of Type of License on pages 2-3 

New License Table 
Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4 5A 5B 5C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
Agriculture 5-12 1 14     1     16 
Agriculture Business 5-12    3        3 
Agriculture Mechanics 5-12    7        7 
Art K-12 2 8    5      15 
Assiniboine K-12          1  1 
Auto Body 5-12            0 
Automotive Technology 5-12            0 
Aviation 5-12            0 
Biology 5-12 4 3    2     1 10 
Building Maintenance 5-12            0 
Building Trades 5-12      3      3 
Business Education 5-12 3 5    5      13 
Business Marketing 5-12    6        6 
Carpentry/ Fine Woodworking    2        2 
Chemistry 5-12 1 1    1      3 
Chippewa K-12            0 
Computer Coding 5-12           1 1 
Comp. and Info. Systems 5-12    4        4 
Computer Science 5-12  2    1      3 
Cree K-12            0 
Crow K-12          1  1 
Culinary Arts 5-12    4        4 
Diesel Mechanics 5-12    1        1 
Drafting 5-12     1        1 
DC- Communications 5-12           2 2 
DC- Health 5-12           1 1 



P a g e  | 11 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4 5A 5B 5C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
Early Childhood P-3 8 28   1 3 3     43 
Earth Science 5-12 3           3 
Elementary K-8 75 278   4 63 18     438 
Emergency Medical Technician 5-12    2        2 
Engineering 5-12            0 
English 4-8 1           1 
English 5-12 19 36   2 10 1     68 
English Second Lang. K-12 13 9          22 
Family and Consumer Sciences 5-12 1 4    2     1 8 
Fire and Disaster Services 5-12    2        2 
French K-12 2           2 
German K-12  1          1 
Graphic Arts 5-12    1        1 
Gros Ventre K-12            0 
Health and Physical Education K-12 3 26   1 12      42 
Health Professions- Biotechnology 5-12    2        2 
Health Professions- Informatics 5-12            0 
Health Professions- Therapeutics 5-12    1        1 
Health Science Education 5-12    1        1 
Heavy Equipment Operations 5-12            0 
History 5-12 3 16         1 20 
Industrial Mechanics 5-12    1        1 
Indus. Trades and Tech. Ed. 5-12  2          2 
Italian K-12  1          1 
Journalism 5-12 1 1          2 
Library K-12 2 7          9 
Livestock Production 5 -12    5        5 
Machining 5-12    1        1 
Mathematics 5-12 19 24    5 2    1 51 
Metals 5-12     1        1 



P a g e  | 12 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

Endorsement Area 1 2 3 4 5A 5B 5C 6 PS 6 SC 7 8 Total 
Music K-12 4 23    1 1     29 
Physical Education K-12 1 3     1     5 
Physics 5-12 2     1      3 
Plant and Soil Sciences 5-12    1        1 
Political Science 5-12  7          7 
Principal K-12   17         17 
Psychology 5-12 2           2 
Reading K-12 2 21     1     24 
ROTC Instruction 5-12    2        2 
Salish K-12            0 
School Counseling K-12      20 1  21   42 
School Psychologist K-12      5  5    10 
Science (Broadfield) 4-8 1 1          2 
Science (Broadfield) 5-12 6 16    14      36 
Small Engines 5-12    1        1 
Social Studies (Broadfield) 4-8 1           1 
Social Studies (Broadfield) 5-12 7 33   1 2 4     47 
Sociology 5-12 1 1          2 
Spanish K-12 7 7    2 1     17 
Special Education P-12 27 48    35 4     114 
Sp. Ed. Hearing Imp. P-12 2 1          3 
Sp. Ed. Vision Imp. P-12 1           1 
Stagecraft 5-12    1        1 
Superintendent K-12    2         2 
Supervisor- Sp. Ed. P-12   1         1 
Theater 5-12     2        2 
Traffic Education 5-12  1  1        2 
Videography 5-12    1        1 
Welding 5-12    4        4 
Totals 225 628 20 58 9 192 38 5 21 2 8 1206 



P a g e  | 13 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

5A. Internship Table- By Subject     5B. Internship Table- By Educator Preparation Program 
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024                   January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
Endorsement Description License Count 
Teaching Internship 38 

Business Education 5-12 1 
Elementary K-8 5 

English 5-12 2 
Family and Consumer Science 5-12 3 
Health and Physical Education K-12 1 

Library K-12 9 
Reading K-12 1 

Special Education P-12 16 
Principal K-12 16 
Principal and Superintendent K-12 3 
School Counselor K-12 9 
Special Education Endorsement Project P-12 21 
Superintendent K-12 12 
Total 99 

EPP Description License Count 
Montana State University- Billings 31 
Montana State University- Bozeman 22 
Rocky Mountain College 5 
University of Montana 31 
University of Montana- Western 10 
Total 99 



P a g e  | 14 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

6.  Internship and Emergency Authorization Table - By District 
SY 2024-25 July 1, 2024- June 30, 2025 
District Name # of Intern. # of EAEs  District Name # of Intern. # of 

EAEs 
 District Name # of 

Intern. 
# of EAEs 

Absarokee  1 Deer Lodge  1 Kalispell 2 1 
Arrowhead  2 Dupuyer  2 Kircher  2 
Ashland   1 Ekalaka 1 2 Lame Deer  4 
Augusta  1 Elder Grove 1 1 Lavina  2 
Bainville   4 Elliston  1 Lewistown 1 1 
Belgrade  2 4 Elysian  1 Lima  1 
Big Sandy  1 Ennis  1 Livingston 3 4 
Big Sky 1 1 Fair-Mont Egan  1 Lockwood 3 4 
Big Timber   2 Fairview 1 2 Lodge Grass  1 
Billings 3 4 Fortine  1 Miles City 1 9 
Bonner 1 1 Frenchtown 2 1 Missoula 4 3 
Broadus   2 Fromberg 1 6 Moore  2 
Broadview   3 Frontier  3 Nashua 1 1 
Brockton  1 Galata  1 North Star  1 
Browning   23 Geraldine  2 Philipsburg  1 
Butte Central  1 Glendive 1 6 Plains  2 
Cayuse Prairie  2 Grass Range  1 Plentywood  6 
Centerville 1 2 Great Falls Cent Cath  1 Plevna 1 4 
Chester-Joplin Inv. 2 3 Great Falls  3 5 Pondera  1 
Choteau 1 1 Hardin  6 Poplar  2 
Circle   2 Harlem  1 Powell  1 
Colstrip  3 5 Harrison 1 1 Power  1 
Columbus 1 1 Hays-Lodge Pole  2 Rapelje 1 1 
Culbertson  1 Heart Butte 2 1 Red Lodge  1 
Custer 1 3 Helena 4 3 Richey 1 2 
Cut Bank  4 Huntley Project  2 Roberts  1 
Darby  1 Independent  2 Ronan  2 



P a g e  | 15 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

District Name # of Intern. # of EAEs  District Name # of Intern. No 
EAEs 

 District Name # of 
Intern. 

No 
EAEs 

Roundup 1 1 Anaconda 4  Shodair Spec. Hos. 1  
Savage  1 Ayers 1  Sheridan 1  
Scobey  5 Baker 3  Swan River 1  
Seeley Lake  1 Belt 1  Twin Bridges 1  
Shelby 1 2 Box Elder 1  West Glacier 1  
Shepherd 1 5 Bozeman 2  Whitefish 2  
Sheridan 1 2 Butte  2  Total  46  
Shields Valley  1 Cascade 1     
Sidney  2 Ctrl MT Learn Res Ctr 1     
Stanford  1 Charlo 1     
Stevensville  1 Dodson 1     
Sunburst  1 Eureka 1     
Sweet Grass County 1 2 Evergreen 1     
Terry 1 5 Fergus 1     
Three Forks  1 Fort Benton 1     
Trail Creek  1 Frazer 1     
Trout Creek  4 Garfield County 1     
Troy  3 Greenfield 1     
Valier  1 Havre 3     
Victor 1 1 Hellgate 2     
West Yellowstone  4 Highwood 1     
Whitewater  1 Jordan 1     
Wibaux  2 Lolo 2     
Willow Creek 1 1 Lone Rock 2     
Winnett  1 Manhattan Christian 1     
Wolf Point  1 16 Prickly Pear Coop 1     
Totals  60 261 Ryegate 1     

 
 



P a g e  | 16 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

7.  Emergency Authorization Table - By Endorsement      8. Emergency Authorization Table- SY 2024-25  
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024          July 1, 2024 to January 10, 2025 

Endorsement Description License Count 
Agriculture 5-12 4 
Art K-12 7 
Business Education 5-12 8 
Chemistry 5-12 2 
Computer Science 5-12 1 
Early Childhood P-3 8 
Elementary K-8 120 
English 5-12 15 
English Second Lang. K-12 1 
Family and Consumer Science 5-12 8 
German K-12 2 
Health and Physical Education K-12 8 
History 5-12 2 
Industrial Technology Education 5-12 3 
Library K-12 8 
Mathematics 5-12 15 
Music K-12 19 
Physical Education K-12 5 
Reading K-12 1 
School Counselor K-12 11 
Science (BF) 5-12 11 
Social Studies (BF) 5-12 8 
Spanish K-12  5 
Total 272** 

 
  **The total for Table 8 is greater than Table 6 for EAE’s due to multiple  
  endorsements being issued to one EAE. 
 

 
*Being a year-long report, the data is for both the 2023-24 and  
2024-25 school year for Table 7.  
 
 

Endorsement Description License Count 
Agriculture 5-12 3 
Art K-12 7 
Business Education 5-12 9 
Chemistry 5-12 2 
Computer Science 5-12 1 
Early Childhood P-3 8 
Elementary K-8 139 
English 5-12 17 
English Second Lang. K-12 2 
Family and Consumer Science 5-12 11 
German K-12 2 
Health and Physical Education K-12 8 
History 5-12 6 
Industrial Technology Education 5-12 3 
Library K-12 9 
Mathematics 5-12 19 
Middle Grades 4-8 1 
Music K-12 19 
Physical Education K-12 7 
Reading K-12 1 
School Counselor K-12 11 
Science (BF) 5-12 12 
Social Studies 5-12 9 
Spanish K-12 5 
Total 311* 



P a g e  | 17 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

9.  Denial Table 

January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
Academic Licensure Request Reason for Denial Cases 
 Adding endorsement(s) to a 

current license 
1) Did not pass Praxis exam, applied using the 2+ years teaching experience and passing the Praxis 

exam pathway. 
2) Did not complete an EPP for elementary education, cannot use other pathways for elementary 

education. 

2 

Class 1 Professional License Did not complete an EPP for special education, cannot use other pathways for special education. 1 

Class 3 Administrative License Did not complete an EPP for special education; does not have a degree in special education, does not 
qualify for special education supervisor. 

1 

Character Licensure Request Reason for Denial Cases 
   0 

Total Number of Denial Cases 4 

 
 
10. Unusual Case Table 
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
License  Reason for Unusual Case  Cases 
Class 5 Bachelor’s from an unaccredited college/university but enrolled in an accredited EPP  2 
Class 5 Requested a second Class 5 since the first was not used 1 
Various DOJ could not read fingerprints, two attempts (four cards), name-based search utilized  5 
Various Cannot obtain university recommendation; utilized transcripts, or letter from program, or letter from state 5 
Add End. Used experience plus Praxis exam, one year of experience was licensed but misassigned 1 

Total Number of Unusual Cases                14 
 
 
 
 



P a g e  | 18 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

11.  New License History in Fields of Critical Endorsement Shortages 
Five-Year Study 2020-2024 
License Year 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Art 28 42 28 31 15 
Career & Technical Education 26 35 58 83 58 
Elementary 470 580 452 507 438 
English 73 116 69 98 69 
Health 60 58 34 32 42 
Library 3 7 1 7 9 
Mathematics 54 51 54 52 51 
Music 37 45 27 41 29 
Principal 16 17 26 18 17 
School Counselor 31 55 27 32 42 
School Psychologist 21 29 9 16 10 
Science (BF) 35 47 27 46 38 
Social Studies (BF) 61 73 46 62 48 
Special Education 93 138 98 127 118 
Superintendent 1 8 3 7 2 
Supervisor (Special Education) 1 0 2 1 1 
World Languages 29 31 19 34 23 
Total 1039 1332 980 1194 1010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P a g e  | 19 
 

Montana OPI 2024 Educator Licensure Annual Report 
Data/ Report compiled by Crystal Andrews, Senior Manager of Accreditation and Licensure 

 
 

 

12.  Licensure History New Hires and Renewals for Last 5 years 
 

  

1251

5530

1646

5204

1207

5256

1453

4780

1206

4619

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Initial Licenses Renewals, Upgrades, and Add
Endorsements

Licensure History

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25



ITEM 11 
 
 

INFORMATION ON MONTANA STATE 
UNIVERSITY SPECIAL EDUCATION 

CERTIFICATION PROGRAM 
 
 

Crystal Andrews 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: January 24, 2025 
  

Presentation Recommend Initial Approval of Montana State 
University’s Request to Implement: Special Education 
Certificate.  

  

Presenter Crystal Andrews  

 

Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 

 Office of Public Instruction 

Overview State Superintendent Hedalen recommends to the Board 
of Public Education the initial approval of Montana State 
University’s request to implement a Special Education 
Certificate. 
 
Montana State University’s Assistant Professor of Special 
Education, Leslie Rogers, will provide an overview of the 
certificate.   

  

Requested Decision(s) Information only 

  

Related Issue(s) 10.58.802 Approval of New Curricular Programs 

  

Recommendation(s) None 

  



 
 
 

APPROVAL OF NEW CURRICULAR PROGRAMS  
APPLICATION GUIDELINES 

 

Montana State University- Special Education Certificate 
Administrative Rules of Montana 10.58.802 

 

Step 1: Initial Approval Date Submitted 

Educator Preparation Provider (EPP) curriculum process 
and procedures. 

Summer 2024 

Institutional body implements policy to add new 
programs.  

Summer 2024 

Institutional governing body, i.e., board of directors, 
institutional leadership, or Board of Regents, as 
applicable, approves new program application. 

September 2024 

Verification of regional accreditation. 
 

September 2024 

 

Step 2: Application Process Date Submitted 

EPP completes the Institutional Self-Study Report (ISSR) to 
address Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM)10.58.802 
Approval of New Curricular Programs. 

September 2024 

EPP completes sections of the ISSR unit standards 
addressing how the new curricular program is aligned with 
ARM 10.58.311 – 315   

September 2024 

EPP completes sections of the ISSR: ARM 10.58.501 
Teaching Standards for endorsement subject areas; and 
specific sections of ARM related to the new program. 

September 2024 

EPP provides support material and resources as needed to 
respond to the Specific ISSR Sections – use electronic links 
as applicable, e.g., online Web links containing additional 
resources and support material, catalogs, programs of 
studies, assessment system information, surveys of need. 

September 2024 

 

Step 3: Application Submission Date Submitted 

EPP submits completed ISSR electronically to the OPI. 
 

October 2, 2024 

 

Step 4: Office Audit/Review Date Submitted 

OPI conducts the audit/review of the application 
materials.  

November 2024 



 

OPI provides an electronic report to EPP with comments 
and specific requests for additional documentation. 
 

December 2024 

EPP submits a follow-up report/response to OPI, as 
necessary. 
 

December 2024 

 

Step 5: Site Visit Date Submitted 

If the EPP is scheduled for a regular site review, the new 
program is included in the regular review.   
 

N/A 

If the EPP is not scheduled for a regular review within the 
next two years, the OPI will conduct a site review to verify 
the ISSR of the new curricular program meets the PEPP 
Standards.  

Fall 2026 

OPI facilitates the site review to verify the ISSR meets the 
PEPP Standards of the new program. 
 

Fall 2026 

Site Visits follow the approved state protocol based on the 
PEPP Standards. 
 

Fall 2026 

 

Step 6: Final Approval Process Date Submitted 

Site visitor team submits the state exist report to the state 
superintendent. 
 

January 2027 

State Superintendent of Public Instruction makes 
recommendation to approve/disapprove the proposed 
new curricular program to the BPE based upon the site 
team report. 
 

March 2027 

BPE takes final action on the Superintendent’s 
recommendation.  
 

May 2027 

 



ITEM 12 
 
 

PRESENTATION ON ABCTE INTERIM 
REPORT FOR ALTERNATIVE 

CREDENTIALING 
 
 

Isabel Welch, ABCTe 
Crystal Andrews 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: January 23, 2025 
 

Presentation Presentation of the interim report that was a requirement 
as part of initial approval for the Alternative Program- 
American Board for Certification of Teacher Excellence 
(American Board). 

  

Presenter Crystal Andrews  
Isabelle Welch  

Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager,  OPI 
 
Director of Government Affairs 

 American Board 

Overview The American Board was initially approved by the BPE in 
March 2024. As part of the approval, the American Board 
is required to submit an interim report.   
 
Ms. Welch will have a power point and information packet 
that she will bring with her to the meeting. 

  

Requested Decision(s) Information only 

  

Related Issue(s) ARM 10.58.802 
 
BPE Recommend initial approval to ABCTE until January 
2026 at which time ABCTE will have to provide evidence of 
five items outlined in ARM 10.58.802(2) to be considered 
for full approval. 
 

  

Recommendation(s) None 

  



 
 
 

APPROVAL OF NEW CURRICULAR PROGRAMS  
APPLICATION GUIDELINES 

 
American Board  

Administrative Rules of Montana 10.58.802 
 

Step 1: Initial Approval Date Submitted 

Educator Preparation Provider (EPP) curriculum process 
and procedures. 

n/a 

Institutional body implements policy to add new 
programs.  

n/a 

Institutional governing body, i.e., board of directors, 
institutional leadership, or Board of Regents, as 
applicable, approves new program application. 

n/a 

Verification of regional accreditation. 
 

n/a 

 

Step 2: Application Process Date Submitted 

EPP completes the Institutional Self-Study Report (ISSR) to 
address Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM)10.58.802 
Approval of New Curricular Programs. 

October 2, 2023 

EPP completes sections of the ISSR unit standards 
addressing how the new curricular program is aligned with 
ARM 10.58.311 – 315   

October 2, 2023 

EPP completes sections of the ISSR: ARM 10.58.501 
Teaching Standards for endorsement subject areas; and 
specific sections of ARM related to the new program (i.e., 
ARM 10.58.523 Social Studies; ARM 10.58.518 
Mathematics). 

October 2, 2023 

EPP provides support material and resources as needed to 
respond to the Specific ISSR Sections – use electronic links 
as applicable, e.g., online Web links containing additional 
resources and support material, catalogs, programs of 
studies, assessment system information, surveys of need. 

October 2, 2023 

 

Step 3: Application Submission Date Submitted 

EPP submits completed ISSR electronically to the OPI. 
 

October 27, 2023 

 



Step 4: Office Audit/Review Date Submitted 

OPI conducts the audit/review of the application 
materials.  
 

November 2023 

OPI provides an electronic report to EPP with comments 
and specific requests for additional documentation. 
 

November 2023 

EPP submits a follow-up report to OPI, as necessary. 
 

November 2023 

The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall recommend 
initial approval status to the BPE based upon the review of 
documentation. 

Information Item: November 16-
17, 2023 
Action Item:  January 18-19, 
2024 
 

 

Step 5: EPP Audit/Review Date Submitted 

If the EPP is scheduled for a regular review, the new 
program is included in the regular review.  Interim Report 
 

January 2025 

If the EPP is not scheduled for a regular review within the 
next two years, the OPI will conduct a review to verify the 
ISSR of the new curricular program meets the PEPP 
Standards.  

January 2026 

OPI facilitates the review to verify the ISSR meets the 
PEPP Standards of the new program. 
 

January 2026 

Reviews follow the approved state protocol based on the 
PEPP Standards. 
 

January 2026 

 

Step 6: Final Approval Process Date Submitted 

Review team submits the state exit report to the state 
superintendent. 
 

 

State Superintendent of Public Instruction makes 
recommendation to approve/disapprove the proposed 
new curricular program to the BPE based upon the site 
team report. 
 

 

BPE takes final action on the Superintendent’s 
recommendation.  
 

 

 



ITEM 13 
 
 

INFORMATION ON THE QUALITY 
EDUCATOR LOAN ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
 

Dr. Julie Murgel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: 1/23/25 to 1/24/25 
  

Presentation Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report 
  
Presenter Julie Murgel 
 

Position Title OPI – Chief Program Officer 
  

Overview The Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report for 
2023 and 2024 

  

Requested Decision(s) Informational Item 
  

Related Issue(s) § 20-5-504, MCA 

  

Recommendation(s)    
  

https://archive.legmt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0040/part_0050/sections_index.html


 

 
Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report 

 
§ 20-5-504, MCA expanded eligibility and limited the total amount of funding for the program.   § 20-5-504, MCA removed the requirements for 

teachers qualifying for the Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program to be teaching in a critical quality educator shortage area. The additional cost 
to the state general fund for this program was $269,000 more than the $1.0 million currently appropriated in the 2025 Biennium. 
 
The Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education reported an average distribution of funding between FY 2012 and FY 2017 of $512,251 per year 
to an average of 178 applicants. No awards were distributed in FY 2018 and FY 2019 as the legislature did not provide any appropriation. In FY 2020 
through FY 2022, the OPI distribute $273,069, $264,404, and $453,596, respectively to an average of 141 recipients.  
 

 
FY2023 

Appropriation $        500,000 

FY2024 

Appropriation $ 603,000 

Distributed $        420,289 Distributed $ 247,000 

Remaining Appropriation $              79,711 Remaining Appropriation $ 356,000 

 
Applicants (145) 

  
Applicants (80) 

 

Approved (110) 
 

Approved (62) 
 

Year 1 ($3,000 @ 37 Approved ‐ w/Adj_Loan Bal Less) $ 110,497 Year 1 ($3,000 @ 23 Approved) $ 69,000 

Year 2 ($4,000 @45 Approved) $ 176,000 Year 2 ($4,000 @ 17 Approved w/Adj_Loan Bal Less) $ 68,000 

Year 3 ($5,000 @ 28 Approved w/Adj_Loan Bal Less) 

Year 4 ($5,000 @ 11 ‐ Paid By School District ‐ $55,000) 

$ 133,792 Year 3 ($5,000 @ 22 Approved) 

Year 4 ($5,000 @ 5 ‐ Paid By School District ‐ $25,000) 

$110,000 

Denied (24) 
 

Denied (13) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://archive.legmt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0040/part_0050/sections_index.html
https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0040/part_0050/section_0040/0200-0040-0050-0040.html


   ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – (Items 14-15) 
 
 

Madalyn Quinlan 
 
 

ITEM 14 
 
 

ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION 
PERTAINING TO THE ADOPTION, 

AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF ARM, 
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS 

CONTENT STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE 
FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE 

SECRETARY OF STATE’S OFFICE FOR 
PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER 
 
 

Madalyn Quinlan 
 
 
 
 
 



1Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION

NOTICE OF ADOPTION
MAR NOTICE NO. 2024-170.1

Summary
In the matter of the adoption of New Rules I through VII, the amendment of ARM 10.53.501,
10.53.502, 10.53.503, 10.53.504, 10.53.505, 10.53.506, 10.53.507, 10.53.508, 10.53.509,
10.53.510, and 10.53.511, and the repeal of ARM 10.53.512, 10.53.513, 10.53.514, 10.53.515,
10.53.516, and 10.53.517 pertaining to Mathematics Content Standards.
Previous Notice(s) and Hearing Information
On October 4, 2024, the Board of Public Education (board) published MAR No. 10-53-141
pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules at page
2341 of the 2024 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 19.

Final Rulemaking Action – Effective July 1, 2026
ADOPT AS PROPOSED
The agency has adopted the following rules as proposed:
NEW RULE I (10.53.518) CORE NUMERIC REASONING STANDARDS
NEW RULE II (10.53.519) CORE ALGEBRAIC AND FUNCTIONAL REASONING STANDARDS
NEW RULE III (10.53.520) CORE DATA REASONING AND PROBABILITY STANDARDS
NEW RULE IV (10.53.521) CORE GEOMETRIC REASONING STANDARDS
NEW RULE V (10.53.522) CORE PLUS NUMBER AND QUANTITY STANDARDS
NEW RULE VI (10.53.523) CORE PLUS ALGEBRAIC AND FUNCTIONAL REASONING STANDARDS



Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025 2

NEW RULE VII (10.53.524) CORE PLUS DATA AND REASONING STANDARDS
AMEND AS PROPOSED
The agency has amended the following rules as proposed:
10.53.501 STANDARDS FOR MATHEMATICAL PRACTICE FOR GRADES K-12
10.53.502 MONTANA KINDERGARTEN MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.503 MONTANA GRADE 1 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.504 MONTANA GRADE 2 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.505 MONTANA GRADE 3 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.506 MONTANA GRADE 4 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.507 MONTANA GRADE 5 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.508 MONTANA GRADE 6 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.509 MONTANA GRADE 7 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.510 MONTANA GRADE 8 MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.511 SYMBOLS
REPEAL AS PROPOSED
The agency has repealed the following rules as proposed:
10.53.512 MONTANA HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS NUMBER AND QUANTITY STANDARDS
10.53.513 MONTANA HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS ALGEBRA CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.514 MONTANA HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS FUNCTIONS STANDARDS
10.53.515 MONTANA HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS MODELING CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.516 MONTANA HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GEOMETRY CONTENT STANDARDS
10.53.517 MONTANA HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS STATISTICS AND PROBABILITY
STANDARDS

Statement of Reasons



Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025 3

No comments were received.

Contact
McCall Flynn
(406) 444-6576
bpe@mt.gov

Rule Reviewer
McCall Flynn, Executive Director
Approval
Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair
Montana Board of Public Education



ITEM 15 
 
 

ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION 
PERTAINING TO THE ADOPTION AND 

REPEAL OF ARM, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 54, 
WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT 

STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE FILING OF 
THE NOTICE WITH THE SECRETARY OF 
STATE’S OFFICE FOR PUBLICATION IN 

THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE 
REGISTER 

 
 

Madalyn Quinlan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION

NOTICE OF ADOPTION
MAR NOTICE NO. 2024-153.1

Summary
In the matter of the adoption of NEW RULES I through VIII and the repeal of ARM 10.54.8510,
10.54.8511, 10.54.8512, 10.54.8513, 10.54.8520, 10.54.8521, 10.54.8522, 10.54.8523,
10.54.8530, 10.54.8531, 10.54.8532, 10.54.8533, 10.54.8540, 10.54.8541, 10.54.8542,
10.54.8543, 10.54.8550, 10.54.8551, 10.54.8552, 10.54.8553, 10.54.8560, 10.54.8561,
10.54.8562, 10.54.8563, 10.54.8570, 10.54.8571, 10.54.8572, 10.54.8573, 10.54.8580,
10.54.8581, 10.54.8582, 10.54.8583, 10.54.8590, 10.54.8591, 10.54.8592, 10.54.8593,
10.54.8607, 10.54.8608, 10.54.8609, 10.54.8610, 10.54.8611, 10.54.8612, 10.54.8613,
10.54.8614, 10.54.8615, 10.54.8616, 10.54.8617, and 10.54.8618 pertaining to World Language
Content Standards.
Previous Notice(s) and Hearing Information
On August 9, 2024, the Board of Public Education (board) published MAR No. 10-53-140
pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules at page
1946 of the 2024 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 15.
ADOPT AS PROPOSED
The agency has adopted the following rules as proposed:
NEW RULE I (10.53.1401) WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 1 – COMMUNICATION
NEW RULE II (10.53.1402) WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 2 – CULTURES
NEW RULE III (10.53.1403) WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 3 – CONNECTIONS
NEW RULE IV (10.53.1404) WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 4 – COMPARISONS
NEW RULE V (10.53.1405) WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 5 – COMMUNITIES



Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025 2

NEW RULE VI (10.53.1406) WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTORS AT THE NOVICE
LEVEL
NEW RULE VII (10.53.1407) WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTORS AT THE
INTERMEDIATE LEVEL
NEW RULE VIII (10.53.1408) WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTORS AT THE
ADVANCED LEVEL
REPEAL
The agency has repealed the following rules as proposed:
10.54.8510 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 1
10.54.8511 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 1 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8512 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 1 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8513 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 1 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8520 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 2
10.54.8521 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 2 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8522 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 2 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8523 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 2 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8530 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 3
10.54.8531 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 3 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8532 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 3 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8533 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 3 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8540 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 4



Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025 3

10.54.8541 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 4 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8542 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 4 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8543 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 4 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8550 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 5
10.54.8551 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 5 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8552 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 5 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8553 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 5 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8560 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 6
10.54.8561 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 6 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8562 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 6 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8563 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 6 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8570 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 7
10.54.8571 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 7 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8572 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 7 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8573 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 7 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8580 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 8
10.54.8581 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 8 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1



Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025 4

10.54.8582 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 8 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8583 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 8 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8590 WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 9
10.54.8591 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 9 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8592 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 9 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8593 BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 9 FOR END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8607 ADVANCED WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8608 PROFICIENT WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8609 NEARING PROFICIENCY WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR
THE END OF BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8610 NOVICE WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 1
10.54.8611 ADVANCED WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8612 PROFICIENT WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8613 NEARING PROFICIENCY WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR
THE END OF BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8614 NOVICE WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 2
10.54.8615 ADVANCED WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8616 PROFICIENT WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 3



Issue No. 3 - February 7, 2025 5

10.54.8617 NEARING PROFICIENCY WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR
THE END OF BENCHMARK 3
10.54.8618 NOVICE WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF
BENCHMARK 3

Statement of Reasons
No comments were received.

Contact
McCall Flynn
(406) 444-6576
bpe@mt.gov

Rule Reviewer
McCall Flynn, Executive Director
Approval
Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair
Board of Public Education



**********Time Certain at 2:45 PM********** 
 
 

    LICENSURE COMMITTEE – (Item 16) 
 
 

Jane Hamman 
 
 

ITEM 16 
 
 

ACTION ON CONTESTED CASE HEARING 
BPE CASE #2024-10, MAHERAS 

 
 

Aislinn Brown 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    REPORTS – (Item 17) 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
 

ITEM 17 
 
 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
 

Gavin Mow 
 
 
 
  



     MSDB LIAISON – (Item 18) 
 
 

Lisa Schmidt 
 
 

ITEM 18 
 
 

MSDB REPORT  
 
 

Paul Furthmyre 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS: 
 
 

 Action on Personnel Items 
 Action on Out of State Travel Requests 

 2nd Reading of MSDB Policies 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind 
Board of Public Education Report 

January 2025 
 
Agenda Action Items: 
 

1. Personnel Action Report 
8 Hires 
2 Retirements 
 

2. Out of State Travel Requests 
 Academic Bowl National Competition 

Flying Hooves Competition 
 

3. Final Reading for Policy Changes  
5000 Series - New Policies 
8000 Series - New Policies 

 
4. First Reading for 25-26 School Calendar 

Calendar A 
Calendar B 
GFPS Calendar 
Vote 

 
 
Attached Documents: 

● MSDB Committee Bi-Monthly Meeting Agenda 
● MSDB Committee Bi-Monthly Meeting Minutes 
● HB13 Pay to Base 
● Break point fo HB13 
● Quality Educator Payment 
● STARS Act Calculator 
● EPP Requests 
● HVAC 
● Parking Lot 
● Vocational Building 
● MSDB Strike Plan Update 
● 1/5/25 Financial Report 
● December Newsletter 
● Current Numbers 
● Referral Status 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1UeY7-0ZdQNto1HQWtz90AsSf169KSpsSzjtlVG6A1AU/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Bon-n6RmqzDNyZYYlQsU-mlHKUcRqZRN/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cQG56_wyi-RK33O05YNopWvP6b36swwO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1orGOI75UjhjZ96kbMf6AptPdYPFox7_W/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ewp4SCQZdJX46Diz1VHrH6-zFBwEPZRj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UGTlxDyvLfUz4AgUtPJSJsFpgLKCDkFj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yjuTE7rVoqoxmUKAh7yFdVhOPrlcJ0qH/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rPUA_S98euBY0JqaCs4QZWPlR8ANjBYi/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1H3s-76JOS6JnA26VtrUxIbLC1AdQjsTXuhnYZJMN9Jk/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Yhk0C_ftxM7pPdhHSjItu6QI0Dg0Z6f-/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=117298687530580090600&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1R7W8vjumY6QH7D_3n4bN7-QdRC4qW5Lu/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pcVZqr6rQ0W4b7t80eZ4UaC0-cuXgcdq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KlklH-h-KtYrnQml0ji8FS4pTSb6wJ0G/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/128Exmxe92MeltaGjwMr11_8IXti7Ql4x/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KC1r_UMJtFVZrr_E55RFWDbSw8UV8aUt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18-S4WBJprPs4o26DnJLdUcZkvZBZnDX8/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Bz2kDBkSQBDWIyBTgc_Z15bXjOFDKA_/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1i2ZSBKcV1DI7ZM1Pews4G-EYzBN1vuZp/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1s-9jaX5Gmvvq0Ex3eK91UuDlrxpkKA83/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1s7JQ_lDrWk5xcD7Jd1DAlV4XKPk8duz-/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=109595060706123773788&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16MNS0qRcGiR9LSdLtkBbqR7RCXhlSNvL/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11c_OjwlB86uWpe1wZ40XrKr3enUfp7zR/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Kw9Jsp9p36mVTrue8SecOBf_ip-VB3sj3b3hBloqlL4/edit?usp=sharing


































































































































































































*****CLOSED SESSION***** 
 
 

    EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Item 19) 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
 

ITEM 19 
 
 

MSDB SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
 

*****OPEN SESSION***** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 24, 2025 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Items 20-22) 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
 

ITEM 20 
 
 

ACTION ON MSDB SUPERINTENDENT 
CONTRACT 

 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 21 
 
 

ACTION ON TRANSFORMATIONAL 
LEARNING GRANTS 

 
 

ACTION ITEMS: 
• Qualify Applications 

• Annual Reports 
 
 

Krystal Smith 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

LINK to application 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: 1/6/25 

  

Presentation Qualification of Transformational Learning FY26 
applications 

  
Presenter Krystal Smith 
 
Position Title OPI – Education Innovation Manager 
  

Overview The FY26 application cycle opened December 2, 2024 and 
closed January 13, 2025. During this time, the OPI 
collected applications from applying districts. There is 
currently a waitlist comprised of 16 unfunded districts. All 
approved districts will be rank-ordered through a lottery 
system to determine their place on the waitlist. Included in 
the lottery will be any currently-funded districts that are 
requesting an increase of FTE. This grant sunsets after 
FY27.  

  

Requested Decision(s) Approve or deny Transformational Leaning applications 
for FY26. 

  

Related Issue(s) Supporting documents will be provided on January 16, 
2025 as the application window is currently open. 
Representative Bedey, during the September 2024 
Education Interim Budget Committee meeting, 
recommended that the BPE does not approve any new 
districts, as future funding is uncertain.  

  

Recommendation(s) The recommendation is to approve the submitted 
Transformational Learning applications.  

  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1vhZMn1Y-dau7MOsqV_aA4trJEew7fepW?usp=drive_link


FY26 Transformational Learning Applications 

*Red Lodge Elementary and High School

*application was submitted after the 1/13/25 5pm deadline

Link to Transformational Learning Application 

NOTE: All districts are listed in order of funding

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1eCnRNq6w3rxXHLTf7PRvx_LxIPzhBcAT?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1vhZMn1Y-dau7MOsqV_aA4trJEew7fepW?usp=sharing


 

 

LINK to annual reports 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: 1/6/25 

  

Presentation Qualification of 2024 Transformational Learning Annual 
Reports 

  
Presenter Krystal Smith 
 
Position Title OPI – Education Innovation Manager 
  

Overview The 2024 annual reporting cycle opened December 2, 2024 
and closed January 13, 2025. During this time, the OPI 
collected and reviewed the annual reports submitted via a 
Qualtrics survey from FY25 funded districts. This is 
required for qualification of funding for FY26. There are 
23 districts that are currently funded and eligible for FY26 
funding.  

  

Requested Decision(s) Approve or deny 2024 Transformational Learning annual 
reports.  

  

Related Issue(s) Supporting documents will be provided on January 16, 
2025 as the application window is currently open.  

  

Recommendation(s) The recommendation is to approve the submitted 
Transformational Learning annual reports.   

  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1eCnRNq6w3rxXHLTf7PRvx_LxIPzhBcAT?usp=drive_link


 

 

 

 

2024 Transformational Learning Annual Reports 

Frenchtown K-12 

Alberton K-12 

Lewistown Elementary 

Fergus County High School 

Hamilton K-12 

Corvallis K-12 

Superior K-12 

Livingston Elementary 

Park High School 

Cayuse Prairie Elementary 

Troy Elementary 

Troy High School 

Kalispell Elementary 

Flathead High School 

Darby K-12 

*Potomac Elementary 

Grass Range Elementary 

Grass Range High School 

Whitefish High School 

Whitehall Elementary 

Whitehall High School 



 

 

 

 

Winnett K-12 

Missoula Elementary 

*annual report was submitted after the 1/13/25 5pm deadline 

 

Link to Transformational Learning Annual Reports 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1eCnRNq6w3rxXHLTf7PRvx_LxIPzhBcAT?usp=drive_link


Transformational Learning 
             Lottery Drawing 

             FY 2026 
 

District Name LEA Number Lottery Number Ranking 
Corvallis K-12 LE 0731 0.705547512 1 
Livingston Elementary LE 0612 0.533424020 2 

 

Lottery Drawing Certification 

Drawing Conducted: 01-14-2025 
Witness 1: Ted Wendt 
Witness 1 Affiliation: Carroll College 

 

 



ITEM 22 
 
 

ACTION ON ADVANCED OPPORTUNITY 
GRANTS 

 
 

ACTION ITEMS: 
• Qualify Applications 

• Annual Reports 
 
 

Krystal Smith 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

LINK to applications 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: 1/6/25 
  

Presentation Qualification of MT Advanced Opportunities FY26 
applications 

  
Presenter Krystal Smith 
 
Position Title OPI – Education Innovation Manager 
  

Overview The FY26 application cycle opened December 2, 2024 and 
closed January 13, 2025. During this time, the OPI 
collected applications from applying districts. There is 
currently a waitlist comprised of 9 unfunded districts. All 
approved districts will be rank ordered by a first come, first 
served process, dependent upon the timestamp of received 
and completed applications, to determine order of 
receiving funding.   

  

Requested Decision(s) Approve or deny MT Advanced Opportunities applications 
for FY26.  

  

Related Issue(s) Supporting documents will be provided on January 16, 
2025 as the application window is currently open. There is 
potential for $2 million to be added to this grant during the 
2025 legislative session from the STARS Act.  

  

Recommendation(s) The recommendation is to approve the submitted MT 
Advanced Opportunities applications.    

  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/12sZFXUIDna_GOwZdiRZ39vHv9Z3niH24?usp=drive_link


 

 

 

 

FY26 Montana Advanced Opportunities Applications 

Broadview K-12 

Choteau Elementary 

Choteau High School 

Scobey K-12 

Hardin High School 

Cut Bank High School 

Victor K-12 

Lima K-12 

Three Forks Elementary 

Three Forks High School 

Huntley Project K-12 

Gardiner Elementary 

Gardiner High School 

Denton High School 

Hellgate Elementary 

Stanford K-12 

Butte Elementary 

Butte High School 

Park City Elementary 

Park City High School 

Ryegate K-12 



 

 

 

 

Columbia Falls Elementary 

Columbia Falls High School 

Turner Elementary 

Turner High School 

 

Link to MT Advanced Opportunities Applications 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/12sZFXUIDna_GOwZdiRZ39vHv9Z3niH24?usp=drive_link


 

 

LINK to annual reports 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: 1/6/25 

  

Presentation Qualification of 2024 MT Advanced Opportunities Annual 
Reports 

  
Presenter Krystal Smith 
 
Position Title OPI – Education Innovation Manager 
  

Overview The 2024 annual reporting cycle opened December 2, 2024 
and closed January 13, 2025. During this time, the OPI 
collected and reviewed the annual reports submitted via a 
Qualtrics survey from FY25 funded districts. This is 
required for qualification of funding for FY26. There are 
95 districts that are currently funded and eligible for FY26 
funding.  

  

Requested Decision(s) Approve or deny 2024 MT Advanced Opportunities annual 
reports.  

  

Related Issue(s) Supporting documents will be provided on January 16, 
2025 as the application window is currently open.  

  

Recommendation(s) The recommendation is to approve the submitted MT 
Advanced Opportunities annual reports.   

  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1KfXQXbs0GDCIdRZb2BZHpu8kjiMjudsl?usp=drive_link


 

 

 

 

2024 Montana Advanced Opportunities Annual Reports 

Billings Elementary 

Billings High School 

Glendive Elementary 

Dawson County High School 

Great Falls Elementary 

Great Falls High School 

Missoula Elementary 

Missoula High School 

St. Ignatius K-12 

Helena High School 

Havre Elementary 

Havre High School 

Reed Point Elementary 

Reed Point High School 

Fromberg K-12 

Hot Springs K-12 

Alberton K-12 

Superior K-12 

Custer County High School 

Darby K-12 

East Helena K-12 

Arlee Elementary 



Arlee High School 

Lewistown Elementary 

Fergus County High School 

Fairfield Elementary 

Fairfield High School 

Belgrade Elementary 

Belgrade High School 

Grass Range Elementary 

Grass Range High School 

St. Regis K-12 

Hamilton K-12 

Livingston Elementary 

Park High School 

Kalispell Elementary 

Flathead High School 

Westby K-12 

Frenchtown K-12 

Sweet Grass County High School 

Troy Elementary 

Troy High School 

Cayuse Prairie Elementary 

Red Lodge Elementary 

Red Lodge High School 



 

 

 

 

Lockwood K-12 

Ronan Elementary 

Ronan High School 

Sidney High School 

Libby K-12 

Wibaux K-12 

Absarokee Elementary 

Absarokee High School 

Drummond High School 

Corvallis K-12 

*Florence Carlton K-12 

Joliet Elementary 

Joliet High School 

*Potomac Elementary 

Stevensville Elementary 

Stevensville High School 

Whitefish Elementary 

Whitefish High School 

Whitehall Elementary 

Whitehall High School 

Bozeman Elementary 

Bozeman High School 

Ekalaka Elementary 



 

 

 

 

Carter County High School 

Manhattan Elementary 

Manhattan High School 

Townsend K-12 

Anaconda Elementary 

Anaconda High School  

Winnett K-12 

Polson Elementary 

Polson High School 

West Yellowstone K-12 

White Sulphur Springs K-12 

Plains K-12 

*Colstrip Elementary 

*Colstrip High School 

Roundup Elementary 

Roundup High School 

Beaverhead County High School 

Bainville K-12 

Glasgow K-12 

*annual report was submitted after the 1/13/25 5pm deadline 

 

Link to MT Advanced Opportunities Annual Reports 

 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1KfXQXbs0GDCIdRZb2BZHpu8kjiMjudsl?usp=drive_link


 MACIE LIAISON - (Items 23-24)

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 23 

MACIE REPORT 

Jordann Lankford Forster 



MONTANA ADVISORY COUNCIL ON INDIAN EDUCATION 
ADVISORY TO THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND 
SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 

Montana Board of Public Education 

MACIE Summary 

January 2025 

Presentation MACIE Report  

Presenter Jordann Lankford Forster 

Position Title MACIE Chair 

Overview The purpose of MACIE is to provide 

recommendations and guidance to the Board of 

Public Education and the Office of Public 

Instruction on initiatives and actions aimed at 

increasing American Indian student achievement. 

As your advisory board, and partner in American 

Indian education improvement, we offer the 

following report: 

Related Issue(s) January MACIE Meeting 

IEFA Recommendations 

Student Achievement Gap Recommendations 

Recommendations Review the IEFA Recommendations and Student 

Achievement Gap Recommendations and work with 

MACIE and other education organizations to 

implement and administer the recommendations.  



 

MONTANA ADVISORY COUNCIL ON INDIAN EDUCATION 
ADVISORY TO THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND 
SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 
 

In order to address and close the American Indian student achievement gap, and in the matter of how 

school districts spend their respective funding, The Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education 

(MACIE) wishes to make the formal recommendations to both the Montana Office of Public Instruction 

and the Montana Board of Public Education. We are asking for support by either appropriate entity, 

based on their respective extent and breadth of power.  

The recommendations are as follows: 

• Culture teachers should be tribally specific in their content and language delivery when working with 

students and communities. 

• Districts should be encouraged to hire cultural specialists and coordinators from their communities and 

not limit classroom employment to certified educators in order to address the need for community 

member involvement.  

• School districts should provide transportation for both academic and cultural enrichment opportunities for 

students, staff, and guest speakers to and from communities. 

• School district should provide meals for students, family, and community members for both academic and 

cultural gatherings. 

• The OPI and/or the BPE, in coordination with school districts, should provide adequate and reoccurring 

in-person school board training to our reservation communities. 

• The OPI and/or Montana State Legislature should prioritize literacy and mathematics improvement efforts 

through the funding of additional educational programming and support staff.  

• School districts should make their annual application for Indian Education Federal Funding available to 

parents, community, and any member of the public to insure accountability of a program’s intent and 

efforts. Grant goals and forms of measurement should also be made available to the public.  

• School tutoring and educational efforts should be delivered through research-based techniques and 

guidance.  

• School districts should incorporate the OPI’s Indian Education “whole child” model. 

• (Similar to the reporting required for IEFA funding), the Montana legislature should require school 

districts to report on the uses of their achievement gap funding.  

 

Please keep in mind these recommendations are fluid and subject to change based on the will of the 

Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education.  

 

Sincerely, 

The Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education 

Submitted January 2025  



 

MONTANA ADVISORY COUNCIL ON INDIAN EDUCATION 
ADVISORY TO THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND 
SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 
 

The Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE) wishes to make the formal 

recommendations regarding the expenditure of state Indian Education for All allocated funding to 

both the Montana Office of Public Instruction and the Montana Board of Public Education. We are 

asking for support by either appropriate entity, based on their respective extent and breadth of power.  

 

The recommendations are as follows: 

• The OPI and/or BPE work closely with the Montana University System to ensure training received in all 

teacher preparation programs provide pre-service students with adequate and reoccurring content and 

subject specific delivery models. 

• Remind school district administrators and school boards of the IEFA mandate regularly in order to ensure 

that Indigenous content exist in all subjects and grade levels.  

• Funding should be allocated to Tribal Nations as compensation for consultation.  

• An IEFA coordinator should exist in every school building. 

• School districts should provide transportation for both academic and cultural enrichment opportunities for 

students, staff, and guest speakers to and from communities. 

• School districts should require yearly attendance at IEFA related professional development trainings. If 

participants are limited by the ability to travel, the OPI should prioritize providing such training in any 

community that requests it.   

• School district should provide meals for students, family, and community members for both academic and 

cultural gatherings. 

 

Please keep in mind these recommendations are fluid and subject to change based on the will of the 

Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education.  

 

Sincerely, 

The Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education 

Submitted January 2025  

 

 



ITEM 24 
 
 

INFORMATION ON GOVERNOR’S BUDGET 
REQUEST 

 
 

April Grady 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

MACIE DP Governors Budget 
January 2025 

 

General Fund Total: 

FY 2026 $15,000  

FY 2027 $15,000  

 

NP - 607 - Indian Ed for All - MACIE Meeting Costs - 

This change package is for a general fund increase of $15,000 in each year of the biennium 
to cover costs associated with the Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE) 
to allow for effective and collaborative meetings and work of the council. This is an 
increase in general fund over current MACIE budget of $5,835 for a total of $20,835 for each 
year of the 2027 biennium. Currently, the council meets eight times a year with two in-
person meetings and 21-25 people serving on the council. This increase will help support 
OPI and schools with implementation of Indian Education for All and assist with American 
Indian student achievement.  

 



 CHARTER COMMITTEE – (Item 25)

Jane Hamman 

ITEM 25 

ACTION ON THE RESOLUTIONS TO 
APPROVE AND DENY PUBLIC CHARTER 

SCHOOLS 

Jane Hamman 



 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Item 26)

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 26 

RECOGNITION OF EXITING BOARD MEMBER 

Dr. Tim Tharp 



FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS - March 11-12, 2025 

MACIE Update 
Action on MSDB School Calendar 

Action on Early Literacy Screening Tools (Odd Years) 
Assessment Update 

Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 

Annual School Food Services Report 
Review Draft CAEP MOU 

Content Standards Revision Update 



BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION TOURS 

11:30AM   PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL CLASSROOM OBSERVATION
   Mount Ascension Learning Academy
   Exploration Works, 995 Carousel Way, Helena, MT

12:15PM   PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL ROUNDTABLE LUNCH
   Central Elementary School, 402 North Warren, Helena, MT

1:15PM   PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL CLASSROOM OBSERVATION
   Montessori Charter School
   Central Elementary School, 402 North Warren, Helena, MT


	Financials.pdf
	ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Subcl,Fund

	Item 18 -- MSDB Report.pdf
	MSDB BPE Jan 25 Packet.pdf
	01102025_School For the Deaf &Blind -51130





